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Section 20,600

Not-for-Profit Audit Engagement Checklist
(For Financial Statements With Periods
Ending on or After December 15, 2012)

Instructions for Use of Checklist for Review of Audit
Engagements of Not-for-Profit Organizations

This checklist was developed for use by reviewers of audits of not-for-profit entities (NFPs). It should be used in con-
junction with other guidance materials issued to implement the peer review programs of the AICPA. Questions re-
garding these instructions or any other materials should be directed to AICPA Peer Review at 919.402.4502.

The questions in the checklist are intended to emphasize the general procedures that an independent auditor would
ordinarily perform in auditing and reporting on financial statements of NFPs. Accordingly, in addition to generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and generally accepted auditing standards applicable to all organizations, the
matters covered in this checklist also include the accounting and auditing requirements that are unique to audits of
NFPs and, therefore, extend the auditor’s responsibilities. Reviewers should adapt this checklist to fit specific en-
gagements.

This is a highly summarized checklist. Reviewers may wish to consult the professional standards cited for detailed
information about the requirements. Bulleted points are generally batched into one question on this checklist. The
reviewer should weigh each bullet point separately and in the aggregate when concluding whether the professional
standards requirement was met in all material respects. All “No” answers must be thoroughly explained. Reviewers of
audits of state or local governments should complete the Governmental Audit Engagement Checklist (PRP sec.
20,500) in lieu of this checklist.

The AU-C sections contain application materials that follow the requirements section and are numbered using an
A- prefix. The application materials contain guidance that is not in itself required but is relevant to the proper applica-
tion of the requirements of the AU-C section. If a reviewed firm does not perform the procedures outlined in the
application materials, the reviewer should determine if the procedures that were performed are sufficient to meet the
requirements. Citations from application materials are noted with an **.

Reviewers should complete any applicable supplemental checklists for specialized industries and areas in addition
to this checklist. Industries and areas that have supplemental checklists include depository institutions, construction
contractors, common interest realty associations, providers of healthcare services, U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD), preparers of personal financial statements, broker dealers, and entities subject to the Single
Audit Act and Government Auditing Standards (the Yellow Book).

Reviewers of NFPs receiving federal government awards or grants that exceed the Office of Management and Budget’s
(OMB’s) A-133 single audit threshold should also complete the Supplemental Checklist for Review of A-133 Single
Audit Act Engagements (PRP sec. 22,100). That supplemental checklist gives effect to the 2003 revisions of the OMB
Circular A-133 and the AICPA Audit Guide Government Auditing Standards and Circular A-133 Audits.

Reviewers of not-for-profit audits of HUD projects should not complete the Supplemental Checklist for Review of
Audits of HUD Engagements (PRP sec. 22,080), but instead should complete the Supplemental Checklist for Review
of A-133 Single Audit Act Engagements (PRP sec. 22,100).
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The questions in this checklist have been derived principally from the pronouncements of the Auditing Standards
Board, the Financial Accounting Standards Board and its predecessors, and the AICPA Audit and Accounting Guide
Not-for-Profit Organizations (as of March 1, 2013).

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 29, The Use of Not-for-Profit Accounting and
Financial Reporting Principles by Government Entities, poses the issue of whether an NFP is deemed a governmental
entity. If so, the entity is subject to the pronouncements of GASB rather than GAAP for nongovernmental entities. If
the entity is a governmental entity as described by GASB Statement No. 29, the reviewer should determine if the
Governmental Audit Engagement Checklist (PRP sec. 20,500) is applicable.

Explanation of References:
AAG-NFP AICPA Audit and Accounting Guide Not-for-Profit Organizations (as of March 1, 2013)

AT Reference to section number for Statements on Standards for Attestation Engagements in AICPA
Professional Standards

AU-C Reference to section number for clarified Statements on Auditing Standards in AICPA Professional
Standards

ET Reference to section number in AICPA Code of Professional Conduct in AICPA Professional
Standards

FASB ASC Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification

QC Reference to section number for Statements on Quality Control Standards in AICPA Professional
Standards
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ENGAGEMENT PROFILE
Engagement Code No. Office
Owner/Partner Date of Financial Statements’
Manager Date of Report
Engagement Quality Control Reviewer" Date Report Released

This engagement involves reporting on the following:

[] Financial statements (single entity)

[] Consolidated or combined financial statements of financially interrelated NFPs or voluntary
health and welfare organizations

[] Financial statements of a component of the organization
[ ] Special Reports

[] Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards (See Supplemental Yellow Book Checklist)

[] Compliance for Each Major Program; Internal Control Over Compliance; and Schedule of Expenditures of Feder-
al Awards required by OMB Circular A-133 (Complete Single Audit Data on next page)

[ ] Other (explain)

Is this engagement part of a group audit? Yes [_] No []

Were other auditors involved in this engagement? Yes [INo[]

At the time the report or financial statement(s) on the client’s current year was issued or released, were there billed or

unbilled fees, or note(s) receivable arising from such fees, that remained unpaid for any professional services provid-

ed more than one year prior to the date of the report? Yes [ | No []

Key data reported on by this office for this engagement:

Total revenues (memorandum total)..........cceeevveeriieriiieiiiecie e $
TOLAL ASSELS ..uvevviviiieiieiieiieiet ettt ettt et et et e b et e s beeseeteestessessessessesseeseeseesaessessensans $
TOLAl N ASSEES...evrvieeieiierieieteete ettt et et et ebessestesseeseeseessessessessessesseeseessessassessassens $

General description of audited entity (type of entity, services provided, and so on):

List any nonattest services [ET 101.05] performed for the client during the period of the professional engagement or
the period covered by the financial statements (including financial statement preparation, cash to accrual conversions,
and any other nonattest services):

If this engagement was performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, were any significant threats
identified in regard to nonaudit services? Yes [ ] No [] N/A []

Indicate the working paper reference locations of the independence documentation.

If this engagement was performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, has the assessment of the
skills, knowledge, or experience of the individual(s) designated to oversee the nonaudit service(s) been documented?
Yes [ ] No [] N/A [] If yes, working paper reference location.
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Owner Manager
or or
Partner Equivalent
Personnel Continuity:
Number of years assigned on this engagement...........cccvvieeueeecieeeriieeciieeiee e e ereeevee v
Number of years in current position on this engagement
Audit hours on this engagement:
Prior to After
Commencement During Completion of
Total of Field Work Field Work Field Work

OWNET/Partner..........coueeeveeeeeeeieecieeee e
Engagement Quality Control Reviewer ...........
Manager (or equivalent) ...........ccoceveeeerveeeeeennn.
Senior or Other Professionals
Total HOUTS......ooooviiiiiiiiicececceee e

Describe the engagement team’s experience and training relevant to this engagement.
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Single Audit Data (from final audited financials):

Total amount of federal assistance expended® .............ocovevereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeen, $

Threshold for Type A PrOGIrAMS .........cccveeveeiierieriieieeteeeeeeeeeie e seeseeesseenseenneees $

Were any large loans or loan guarantees excluded in determining
TYPE A PIOGIAMS? ...ooevecereceeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeeeeeee e N/A[] Yes[ ] No[]

Dollar amount of total federal assistance expended that was tested as
TNAJOT PLOZTAIMS 1..enteeneeeuteeteettenteenteatteateesbeesteeteaaeesseesseeteenteeaeesbeenbeenbeensesstesneenseenses $

% of total federal assistance expended that was tested as major programs...............

In accordance with OMB Circular A-133 Section .530, was auditee considered
A TOW-TISK QUATEEE? ..ot ee e eeeeeeeen Yes[ ] No[]

If the auditee was considered low risk, did it meet the following
for each of the two preceding vears? ................ccoooiiiiii N/A ]

Were OMB Circular A-133 single audits performed and submitted on a

HIMELY DASIS? ....voceovececeeceeee e Yes[ ] No[]

Date data collection forms were accepted by the Federal Audit Clearinghouse:
Current year audit:

First preceding year audit:

Second preceding year audit:

Were unqualified opinions issued on the financial statements and the schedule
of expenditures of federal awards? ............cccocvevrreererrveerennnn. Yes[ | No[]

Did the auditee have no material weaknesses in internal control over financial
(S 01041110 USSP Yes ] No[]

Did the auditee have no findings in Type A programs from any of the following:

Material weaknesses in internal control over compliance?...... Yes[] No[]
Material NonCOMPlIANCE?.........cecvveieeierieiieieereeee e seeeae e Yes[] No[]

Known or likely questioned costs > 5% of expenditures
for that Type A Program? ............ccooeeeeveeereereeeeresereerseenenen. Yes[] No[]

Dollar amount required to be tested as major to meet % of coverage based on low-
risk auditee determination aDOVE ..........ccceecvieeiieierienieieee et ee e $

If applicable did auditor use the first year audit exception
and deviate from the risk based approach? .................... N/A[] Yes[ ] No[]

 This amount should include “pass through” federal assistance received indirectly from another state or local government.
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Complete the following chart with two-year look back information and information regarding current year. If the programs are part of a cluster, list the name of
the cluster and all Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) numbers in the cluster. As an alternative to the completion of this worksheet, the major pro-
gram determination worksheet prepared by the firm may be submitted to the peer reviewer. Any alternate format must include the requested information
for the current and prior two years.

SINGLE AUDIT/A-133 MAJOR PROGRAM DETERMINATION WORKSHEET

Current Year First Preceding Year Second Preceding Year
Were Year Last Year Last Year Last
ARRA Audited Audited Audited
Name of funds Total as a Type Non- Total as a Type Total as a Type

Agency or | CFDA or | Name of | expended? | Awards Major | Program | Major | Major | Awards Major |Program| Awards Major |Program
Department |Other No. | Program (Y/N) Expended | Program | (A or B) [Program |Program| Expended| Program | (A or B) | Expended| Program | (A or B)

|Tota| Financial Awards, All Programs

90902
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AUDIT ENGAGEMENT RISK ASSESSMENT

This section of the engagement profile should be completed by the engagement partner or manager (or by the review-
er based on the interview of the engagement team).

1. Summarize key factors the engagement team considered with regard to the entity, its environment, fraud
risk factors, and entity level controls and how they affected the audit approach.

2. What are the two or three areas with the highest risk of material misstatement in the financial statements?

3. If a group audit was performed, describe the level of reliance on the work of component auditors.

Date Engagement Date Checklist Reviewed by
Review Performed Team Captain
Reviewer Signature Team Captain Signature

AICPA Peer Review Program Manual PRP §20,600



20,608 Peer Review Engagement Checklist—System Reviews 00-8 JAN 2014

Checklist for Review of Audit Engagements of Not-for-Profit Organizations

Contents
Section Page
I.  General Audit Planning Procedures
Client and Engagement Acceptance and CONtNUANCE ...........eevereeuierierierierienieeeeeeeeeeeeneeeeneeseeseeees 20,610
Client Understanding ...........oceereeiieieeienieeete ettt ettt et e eete s st e bt e bt enteesteeseesseesseeneesneenseennes 20,611
AUt PLANNING ..ottt ettt ettt et e et esseessee s eeseensesnnesseesneeseenseennenns 20,612
Fraud CONSIAETATIONS ........eiieiueieiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeee e et e e e e e eeae e e e et e e eaaeeeeeaaeeesenteeeeenaeessenareseensneesenneeas 20,613
IT CONSIACTALIONS ...ttt ettt e e ettt e e e e e e e e e e s eateeeesaaeeesenaaeeesseeeesaneseesenseeesnneeeesnnneeas 20,614
(00 oINS 20,614
Work Performed by a Component AUdItOr ..........cccueviririririiieieninene ettt 20,615
Auditor’s Specialist, If USEd .......ceoieiieiiee e ne 20,616
Internal Controls and Control RISKS..........ccocviiiiiiiiiiiiei et 20,616
Service AUItOr’S REPOTES ...c..eiviiiiiiiiieiieie ettt ettt ettt ste e ae e e e e saeesaeesseesseessesssesseensans 20,617
Related Party TranSactiOns. ... ...coueieerueerieeie ettt ettt ettt ettt e te st esaeesbeenee et eneeeneeneeeneenae 20,617
AUAIE PIAN oottt e e e e ettt e e e e s ee ettt e e e e s essaaateeeeessesnaraeeeeesaannes 20,617
II.  Audit Areas
Highest RISK AUGIE AT@AS.....ccuecoviiiieiieiiesiieieeie e ste st e st eaeeaestesteesaeebeesseessesssessaesseesseessesssesssennns 20,618
[T OSSR 20,619
BRI I A2 o) (= RPN 20,619
TIIVEIEOTICS. ...ttt e e e et e e et e e e et e e e eeaaeeeeenaeeeeenareeeenreeeeenaeeeeeteeeeenneeeennnes 20,620
INVESTIMIEIIES ...uvvviiiiieiciieieeee e et e e e ee e e e e e eeaar e e e e e e e eeaaaaeeeeeeeeetaareeeeeesnnaaeeeas 20,620
Prepaid Expenses, Intangible Assets, and Deferred Charges ...........ccocovoeeieienieienenese e 20,621
Collections of Works of Art and Similar ItemS..........c...oooiiiiieiiiiieie e 20,621
Property and EQUIPIMENL...........ooiiiiiiiiieiie ettt ettt e e e seeeneeenseeneenseenne e 20,622
| D1 031 1 1R 20,622
Deferred Revenue and SUPPOIT .......c.ecviiriiiiiiiieieeeeitete ettt ettt eae e e ere e e saeesseesseesseessessaensenns 20,622
Commitments and CONINZENCIES. .......eeuveriertieitieieeie e et te sttt et eete e st e et esbeeseesseesbe e seenseeneesneeenes 20,623
INCE ASSELS .oiiiieiiieeee e e e ettt e e eee et e e et ettt e e e e e e eeetaaae e e e e e eeaataa et e e e eeaaa———taeeeee e atartteeeeenatarraeeeeanaes 20,623
Revenues, EXpenses, and SUPPOTIT.........coiiviiiiieieiieieeteeteeee ettt eteevesee e saeeaeeaeeraesreesaeesseensenns 20,623
Business Combinations and Consolidations...............cocuiiiieuieeioiuiee et 20,625
III.  General Audit Procedures
AUAIE SAMPIING ...ttt ettt ettt e e st et e s bt bt ebeentententesbeabeeaeebeeneeneeneens 20,626
Substantive Analytical PrOCEAUIES..........ccveiiiuiiiieiieie ettt 20,626
Material Accounting EStIMAtES .......c..coerieiiiiriiniininieneecetetete ettt 20,627
ReEPIeSENtAtion LEtETS......eeivieiieiieiieeiiesiesieerte e eee et e st et et e esbeesaessaesseesseesseessesnsessnesseesseensenssenns 20,628
Compliance With Laws and Regulations ............cccceviiiiiiiiienieiecieeeceeeeeere e 20,628
Going Concern CONSIACTALIONS .......eevieiietiertiertiete ettt et ettt et e bt et e e eeeesseesbeenbeensesneesaeeeaes 20,629
Communication of Internal Control Related Matters.........ccccecueiieiiieiiiiiiiieeiie e 20,630
SUDSEQUENE EVENLS .....oeviiiieiieiieiecieciteie ettt ettt et e ebessaessaesaaesseenseenseessesssensaenseensens 20,631
Communications With Those Charged With GOVErnance ............ccccocveevveeiereenieeciieieeieseeie e 20,631
AUt DOCUMENTATION .....vvvviiiiiieiiiiieeee ettt et e e e e e e eaaee e e e e e s eeaaaaeeeeeeseessaaseeeeessesnsaareeeeessanes 20,632
Supervision and REVIEW.......c.cccuiriiiiiririiiieeiietceest ettt sttt ettt sbe s 20,634
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Section Page
IV. Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements

AUAIEOT™S REPOTT ..evvieiiieeiieiieiietteie et et e st te et st e st este e teesbeesseesbesssesseesseesseessesssessaesseesseensenseenns 20,637

Financial Statements and NOTES .........coovviiiiiiiieiiiie ettt e ettt e e eaee e e se e e e ssaaeeseaaeessnraeesenes 20,639

Statement of FINanCial POSITION. .......ccouuuiiiiiiiiiciieiiee ettt e e e e e e e e e e e eennaaneeeeas 20,642

Cash and INVESTMENTS...........cocviiiiieiiieiie ettt eetee et e e steeeeteeesbeeebeeebeeebaeenseeeseeenseeesseensaennns 20,642

Fair Value MEASUTEIMENLS ......c..veeiiiuriiieieeiieeeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeee e et e e eeaeeeeeneeeeensseeesenareeseaeeesenseeeeeans 20,643

Conditional and Unconditional RECEIVADIES ...........ocouviiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee ettt 20,643

L FIN 51 10) & (=1 RSP RRRR 20,644

Fixed Assets and Other NONCUITENT ASSELS.....c..eccviieiiieiiiieiieeeiieeeteeeteeeereeeeteeestaeeereeesseeeseeesaeesreeas 20,645

(0111 1S) T TR 20,645

CUITENT LIADIIITIES ...vveeiiiiiicieeie ettt e e e et e e et e e et e e e enteeessnaaeesetaeeesnaeeesnnnes 20,645

Notes Payable and Other DEbt ..........cc.ooiiiiiiiiiieie e 20,645

N 113001 1 1A ) A2 15 AV 15 1= RRRRR 20,646

Revenues and CONIIDULIONS ........cc.veiiiiviiiiiiiie et e et eeeee e et eeeenteeeeeaeeseenteeeseareesenneeas 20,646

EXPOIISES ..veiiiieiiie ittt ettt ettt et e et e et e et e et b e e at e e bt e e aae e baeeteeenbaeentaeentaeeseeenraeeaaennne 20,647

Other GaINS ANA LLOSSES.....cciiiieiiiiiiii ettt e e e e et e e e e e s eesaaareeeeesseesaaaeeseessenaarees 20,648

Business COMDINATIONS ..........cccuviieiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeteeeeeeee e eeeeeeeeere e e eeaeeseeaeeeeeeseeeseesseeseeneesensreeeenes 20,649

Statement OF CaSH FIOWS.........oiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee et s et e e e e e e enaeeas 20,649

V. Explanation of “No” Answers and Other COMMENTS..........ceoueeierierierienieieeieeie e eee e 20,651

VI CONCIUSIONS. ....uvviiieeieieeeeeieeeeeeee et e e et e et e et e e e et e e eeaaeeeeenaeeeseaaeeeeaaeeeeenseeeeenteeeeaaseesenseeesaareeeannees 20,652

Note: This checklist has been updated through Statement on Auditing Standards No. 126, The Auditor’s Consideration
of an Entity’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern (Redrafted) (AICPA, Professional Standards, AU-C
sec. 570); FASB Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-12, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Deferral
of the Effective Date for Amendments to the Presentation of Reclassifications of Items Out of Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-05; Statement of Position 09-1, Per-
forming Agreed-Upon Procedures Engagements That Address the Completeness, Accuracy, or Consistency
of XBRL-Tagged Data (AICPA, Technical Practice Aids, AUD sec. 14,440); and Statement on Quality Control
Standards No. 8, 4 Firm’s System of Quality Control (AICPA, Professional Standards, QC sec. 10).
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I. GENERAL AUDIT PLANNING PROCEDURES

Ques. N/A! Yes No* Ref.

Client and Engagement Acceptance and Continuance:

Did the engagement partner perform procedures regarding the acceptance
of the client relationship and the specific audit engagement? [AU-C
220.14-.15] Al01 [ ] ]

If a scope limitation was imposed by management that would lead to a
disclaimer, was the audit required by law or regulation? [AU-C 210.07] A102 ] ] ]

If the auditor succeeded another auditor, did the successor auditor initiate
communications with the predecessor auditor to ascertain whether there
were matters that might assist the auditor in determining whether to ac-
cept the engagement? [AU-C 210.11-.12] A103 [ [l [l

Did the successor auditor obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding opening balances about whether opening balances contain mis-
statements that materially affect the current period’s financial statements
and appropriate accounting policies reflected in the opening balances
have been consistently applied? [AU-C 510.06—.11] Al104 [ ] ]

e Also, consider if the auditor becomes aware of information during
the audit that might require revision of prior year presented financial
information, did the auditor make the required inquiries of the prede-
cessor auditor? [AU-C 510.12]

If anything has been noted that may indicate a lack of independence, integ-
rity, and objectivity, was the matter identified and appropriately resolved
by the firm and its effects appropriately considered? [ET 101 and 102; QC
10.21-.26] A105 [ ] ]

Did the member establish and document in writing his or her understand-
ing with the client with regard to specific criteria relating to nonattest
services? [ET 101.05; QC 10.21-.26] A106 L] L] L]

Have engagement personnel (including leased and per diem employees)
been appropriately advised of the need to observe applicable independ-
ence, integrity, and objectivity requirements concerning the client and
any related nonclient parent, investor, investee, subsidiary, or affiliate?

[QC 10.21-.26] A107 [ ] [

Were all fees, billed or unbilled, or note(s) receivable arising from such
fees for any professional services that were provided more than one year
prior to the date of the report, paid prior to the issuance of the report for
the current engagement? [ET 191.103—.104; QC 10.21-.26] A108 ] ] ]

Does it appear the firm’s guidelines for acceptance and continuance of
client relationships, including performing specific engagements for the
client, were complied with, based on inquiry of the accountant or review
of engagement files, if any? [QC 10.27—-.30] A109 ] ] ]

Were scheduling and staffing requirements identified on a timely basis
and approved by appropriate personnel? [QC 10.31-.34 and 10.A17-

A31] All0 [ Il O]

II' The “N/A” column should be used when the item either does not exist or is not material.
* All “No” answers should be handled in either of the following ways: (1) discussed on a Matter for Further Consideration (MFC) form with the
MFC form number noted in the “Ref.” column or (2) discussed on the pages provided at the end of this checklist.
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Client Understanding:

Did the auditor establish the agreed-upon terms of the audit engagement,
which should be documented in an engagement letter or other suitable
form of written agreement? The agreement should include

the objective and scope of the audit of the financial statements.
[AU-C 210.104a]

the responsibilities of the auditor. [AU-C 210.105]

the responsibilities of management, including management’s
acknowledgement of [AU-C 210.10c]

— the fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the applicable financial reporting framework. [AU-C
210.06b6(1)]

— the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal con-
trol relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of finan-
cial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. [AU-C 210.065(ii)]

— providing access to all information of which management is
aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements, such as records, documentation,
and other materials. [AU-C 210.06b(iii)(1)]

— providing the auditor with additional information that the
auditor may request from management for the purpose of the
audit. [AU-C 210.065(iii)(2)]

— providing the auditor with unrestricted access to persons with
the entity from whom the auditor determines it necessary to
obtain audit evidence. [AU-C 210.065(iii)(3)]

a statement that because of the inherent limitations of an audit, to-
gether with the inherent limitations of internal control, an unavoid-
able risk exists that some material misstatements may not be
detected, even though the audit is properly planned and performed
in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS).
[AU-C 210.104]

identification of the applicable financial reporting framework for
the preparation of the financial statements. [AU-C 210.10¢]

reference to the expected form and content of any reports to be
issued by the auditor and a statement that circumstances may arise
in which a report may differ from its expected form and content.
[AU-C 210.10/]

If the auditor became aware that the entity is subject to an audit require-
ment that may not be encompassed in the terms of the engagement, did the
auditor communicate to management and those charged with governance
that an audit in accordance with GAAS might not satisfy the relevant legal,
regulatory, or contractual requirements, if such communication is neces-
sary to comply with AU-C section 260, The Auditor’s Communication
With Those Charged With Governance (AICPA, Professional Standards)?
[AAG-NFP 2.11]

AICPA Peer Review Program Manual

Not-for-Profit Audit Engagement Checklist (Ending on or After December 15, 2012)
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Ques. N/A Yes No Ref.
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Ques. N/A Yes No Ref.

Audit Planning:

Did the auditor properly plan the audit, giving appropriate consideration
to the following? [AU-C 300] Specifically, did the auditor Al13 ] ] ]

e involve the engagement partner and other key members of the
engagement team in planning the audit, including planning and
participating in the discussion among engagement team mem-
bers? [AU-C 300.05]

e cvaluate compliance with relevant ethical requirements? [AU
300.065]

e establish an overall audit strategy that sets the scope, timing, and
direction of the audit and guides the development of the audit
plan? [AU-C 300.07]

e in developing the overall audit strategy, [AU-C 300.08]

— identify the characteristics of the engagement that define its
scope;

— ascertain the reporting objectives of the engagement in order
to plan the timing of the audit and the nature of the commu-
nications required;

— consider the factors that, in the auditor’s professional judg-
ment, are significant in directing the engagement team’s ef-
forts;

— consider the results of preliminary engagement activities
and, when applicable, whether knowledge gained on the oth-
er engagements performed by the engagement partner for the
entity is relevant; and

— ascertain the nature, timing, and extent of resources neces-
sary to perform the engagement?

e develop an audit plan that includes a description of [AU-C
300.09]
— the nature and extent of planned risk assessment procedures;
— the nature, timing, and extent of planned further audit proce-
dures at the relevant assertion level; and
— other planned audit procedures that are required to be carried
out so that the engagement complies with GAAS?

e plan the nature, timing, and extent of direction and supervision of
engagement team members and review of their work? [AU-C
310.11]

e consider whether specialized skills are needed in performing the
audit? [AU-C 300.12]

Did the auditor document the overall audit strategy, the audit plan, and
any changes made during the audit engagement to the overall audit strat-
egy or the audit plan and the reasons for such changes? [AU-C 300.14] All4 ] ] ]

Did the auditor consider, prior to the auditor’s identification and assess-
ment of the risks of material misstatement, such matters as [AU-C

300.A2%%*] All15 [ [l ]
o the analytical procedures to be applied as risk assessment proce-
dures?
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a general understanding of the legal and regulatory framework
applicable to the entity and how the entity is complying with that
framework?

the determination of materiality?
the involvement of specialists?

the performance of other risk assessment procedures?

If consideration was given to the work of internal auditors in determining
the scope of the audit, was it done in accordance with professional stand-
ards? [AU-C 610]

Fraud Considerations:

Did the auditor properly document compliance with fraud risk considera-
tions? [AU-C 240.44] Documentation should summarize

discussion among engagement personnel in planning the audit
regarding the susceptibility of the entity’s financial statements to
material misstatement due to fraud, how management could per-
petrate and conceal fraudulent financial reporting, and how assets
of the entity could be misappropriated. [AU-C 240.15]

inquiries of management and others within the entity about risks
of fraud. [AU-C 240.17-.21]

consideration of preliminary analytical procedures including pro-
cedures specifically related to revenue. [AU-C 240.22]

other information obtained that indicates risks of material mis-
statement due to fraud. [AU-C 240.23]

the identification and the assessment of material misstatement due
to fraud at the financial statement level, as well as at the assertion
level for classes of transactions, account balances, and disclo-
sures. [AU-C 240.25]

the auditor’s reasons supporting a conclusion that improper reve-
nue recognition is not a risk of material misstatement due to
fraud. [AU-C 240.26]

the assessed risks of material misstatements due to fraud as signif-
icant risks and, accordingly, to the extent not already done so, the
auditor’s understanding of the entity’s related controls, including
control activities, relevant to such risks, including the evaluation
of whether such controls have been suitably designed and imple-
mented to mitigate such fraud risks. [AU-C 240.27]

the auditor’s overall responses to address the assessed risks of
material misstatement due to fraud at the financial statement as-
sertion level and the auditor’s incorporation of an element of un-
predictability in the selection of the nature, timing, and extent of
audit procedures. [AU-C 240.28-.30]

the auditor’s identification of management’s override of controls
as a significant risk. The risks of management’s override of con-
trols should be addressed apart from any conclusions regarding
the existence of more specifically identifiable risks. Appropriate
procedures should be performed, including testing the appropri-
ateness of journal entries and other adjustments made in prepara-
tion of the financial statements, review of accounting estimates
for bias, and evaluation of significant transactions that are outside
the normal course of business for the entity. [AU-C 240.31-.32]
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Ques. N/A Yes No Ref.

e cvaluation of the accumulated results of auditing procedures and
whether they affect the assessment of risks of material misstate-
ment due to fraud made earlier in the audit or indicate a previous-
ly unrecognized risk of material misstatement due to fraud. [AU-C
240.34]

o the evaluation of misstatements, whether material or not, and
whether they are indicative of fraud and whether management
was involved. [AU-C 240.34—.37]

e the nature of the communications about fraud made to manage-
ment and those charged with governance. [AU-C 240.39—.41]

e the nature of the communications about fraud made to regulatory
and enforcement authorities. [AU-C 240.42]

IT Considerations:

Did the auditor properly identify risks associated with the role of IT? This
could include the following considerations: Al118 ] ] ]

o Identification of the role of IT relative to financial transactions
and financial reporting [AU-C 315.A53— A60%*]

e Risk of material misstatement associated with financial transac-
tions and financial reporting [AU-C 320]

e Obtaining sufficient knowledge of the information system, in-
cluding the related business processes relevant to financial report-
ing [AU-C 315.A84—.A90**]

e Obtaining an understanding of how the entity has responded to
risks arising from IT [AU-C 315.22]

e Identification and assessment of potentially mitigating controls
for those inherent risks, including application and general compu-
ting controls [AU-C 315.A54—.A60%*]

e The firm possessing, either internally or through the use of a spe-
cialist, the required expertise to address the risks associated with
IT [AU-C 300.A18—-.A19%%*]

e The auditor, directly or through the use of a specialist, sufficient-
ly identifying and addressing risks associated with IT and internal
controls [AU-C 315]

Did the auditor properly identify and document the linkage between fur-
ther audit procedures (test of controls, substantive procedures, or both)
and the IT risk assessment? [AU-C 330] This could include the follow-

ing: A9 [ ] ]

e The auditor documented the understanding of the entity and its
environment. [AU-C 315]

e The firm used a professional possessing IT skills to determine the
effect of IT on the audit, understand the IT controls, or design and
perform tests of IT controls or substantive procedures. [AU-C
310.A19%%]

Group Audits:

Did the auditor appropriately identify the audit as being a group audit
based on the existence of components at the appropriate level of aggre-
gation? [AU-C 600.A1-.A5] A120 [ ] ]
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Were appropriate acceptance and continuance procedures performed,
including

e considering whether sufficient appropriate audit evidence regard-
ing the consolidation process and the financial information of the
components on which to base the group audit opinion can be rea-
sonably expected to be obtained? [AU-C 600.14—.16]

e identification of significant components? A significant compo-
nent is defined as a component identified by the group engage-
ment team (i) that is of individual financial significance to the
group or (ii) that, due to its specific nature or circumstances, is
likely to include significant risks of material misstatement of the
group financial statements. [AU-C 600. 14—.16]

Did the auditor agree upon the terms of the group audit engagement?
[AU-C 600.17]

Did the group audit team establish an overall group audit strategy and
develop an overall group audit plan? Was the plan approved by the
group engagement partner? [AU-C 600.18—-.19]

Did the auditor obtain an understanding of the entity, including group-
wide controls, and of the consolidation process? [AU-C 600.20]

Did the group engagement team determine component materiality for
those components on which the group engagement team will perform, or
for which the auditor of the group financial statements will assume re-
sponsibility for the work of a component auditor who performs, an audit
or a review? [AU-C 600.32]

Did the group engagement team perform proper procedures related to the
consolidation process in response to the assessed risks of material mis-
statements of the group financial statements? [AU-C 600.34—.39]

Work Performed by a Component Auditor:

When the engagement included the work of component auditors, did the
engagement team obtain an understanding of the following? (Note:
Component auditors may be part of the group engagement partner’s
firm, a network firm, or another firm.) Consider

e whether a component auditor understands and will comply with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to the group audit and,
in particular, is independent. [AU-C 600.224]

e acomponent auditor’s professional competence. [AU-C 600.225]

e the extent, if any, to which the group engagement team will be
able to be involved in the work of the component auditor. [AU-C
600.22¢]

e whether the group engagement team will be able to obtain infor-
mation affecting the consolidation process from a component
auditor. [AU-C 600.22d]

e whether a component auditor operates in a regulatory environ-
ment that actively oversees the auditors. [AU-C 600.22¢]

o if the group engagement team evaluated the component auditor’s
communication, including significant findings or issues arising
from that communication. [AU-C 600.43]
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If the group engagement partner decided to make reference to the report
of a component auditor, A128 O] ] ]

e was that decision appropriate? [AU-C 600.24—.27]

e did the auditor’s report make appropriate reference to the compo-
nent auditor in the auditor’s report of the group financial state-
ments? [AU-C 600.28-.31]

If the group engagement partner is not making reference to the work of a
component auditor, appropriate procedures were performed, including
group engagement team involvement in the work of the component audi-
tor. [AU-C 600.50—.64] A129 L] L] L]

Auditor’s Specialist, If Used:

If an auditor’s specialist (for example, actuary, appraiser, engineer, envi-
ronmental consultant, or geologist) was used, did the auditor apply the
appropriate procedures to evaluate the qualifications and findings of the
specialist? Consider whether A130 L] L] L]

e appropriate considerations and evaluations were made in accord-
ance with professional standards. [AU-C 620.08—.11]

o the evaluation of objectivity included the inquiry regarding inter-
ests and relationships that may create a threat to the objectivity of
the auditor’s specialist. [AU-C 620.09]

e appropriate procedures were applied to evaluate the adequacy of
the work of the specialist. [AU-C 620.12]

e appropriate procedures were applied to test the source data used
by the specialist. [AU-C 620.12c¢]

Internal Controls and Control Risks:

In developing an understanding of the entity and its environment relative
to evaluation of the risk of material misstatements and the response to
the audit evidence obtained, did the auditor Al131 ] ] ]

e perform risk assessment procedures including inquiries of man-
agement and other within the entity, analytical procedures, and
observation and inspection? [AU-C 315.05—.11]

e obtain an understanding of the entity and its environment and
components of its internal control in order to assess the risks of
material misstatements at the assertion level and to design and
perform further audit procedures responsive to assessed risks?
[AU-C 315.12-.25]

o understand the auditor’s responsibility to identify and assess the
risks of material misstatement at the financial statement level and
at the relevant assertion level related to classes of transactions,
account balances, and disclosures? [AU-C 315.26—.27]

e identify significant risks and obtain an understanding of the enti-
ty’s controls, including control activities, relevant to those risks,
and, based on that understanding, evaluation whether such con-
trols have been suitably designed and implemented to mitigate
such risks. [AU-C 315.28-.30]

e assess that it is not possible or practicable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence only from substantive procedures re-
lated to some risks? If so, did the auditor obtain an understanding
of the entity’s controls over such risks? [AU-C 315.31]
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e design and perform substantive procedures for all relevant asser-
tions related to each material class of transactions, account balanc-
es, and disclosure? [AU-C 330.18-.24]

Service Auditor Reports:

If the auditor is relying on a service auditor report, did the auditor sub-
stantively meet professional requirements regarding internal control by

e considering the controls at a service organization that may affect
the client’s transactions and internal control? [AU-C 402.09—.14]

e obtaining an understanding of the controls in place at the entity
and at a service organization whose services are part of the enti-
ty’s information system? [AU-C 402.03]

e performing one or more of the following in order to obtain audit
evidence about the operating effectiveness of the service organi-
zation’s controls if the auditor’s risk assessment includes an ex-
pectation that those controls are operating effectively:

— Obtaining and reading the type 2 report [AU-C 402.16]

— Performing appropriate tests of controls at the service organi-
zation [AU-C 402.16]

— Using another auditor to perform tests of client’s controls at
the service organization on behalf of the user auditor [AU-C
402.16]

— Determining whether the service auditor’s report provides
sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the effectiveness
of the controls to support the user auditor’s risk assessment,
if the user auditor plans to use a type 2 report as audit evi-
dence that controls at the service organization are operating
effectively [AU-C 402.17]

Related Party Transactions:
Did the auditor [AU-C 550]

e obtain and document an understanding of related party relation-
ships and transactions to identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement?

o share the identity of related parties and other relevant information
with the engagement team? [AU-C 550.18]

e obtain sufficient audit evidence about whether related party rela-
tionships and transactions have been appropriately identified,
accounted for, and disclosed in the financial statements?

Audit Plan:

Did the auditor properly consider and document the following in the
development of the audit plan and strategy and completion of the audit
programs, when applicable? [AU-C 300.A21-.A23; applicable AICPA
Audit Guides] Consider that

o the overall audit strategy is a record of the key decisions considered
necessary to properly plan the audit and significant issues were
communicated to the engagement team. [AU-C 300.A21**]

e the audit plan is a record of the planned nature, timing, and extent
of risk assessment procedures and further audit procedures at the

relevant assertion level in response to the assessed risks. [AU-C
300.A22%%*]
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II. AUDIT AREAS
Highest Risk Audit Areas
Consider the firm’s risk assessments identified in the engagement profile and your review of the financial statements
and planning documentation to identify, in column 1 that follows, the highest risk audit areas to be reviewed. Ordinar-

ily, a scope of at least three areas is expected. Risk area selection is a matter of professional judgment that may in-
clude consideration of the scope and results of other engagements evaluated in the peer review.

Review the planning and risk assessment documentation for each risk area selected. Indicate your assessment of the
firm’s performance related to elements in columns 2—4. [AU-C 300-315]

Was the Risk
Highest Risk Adequate Planned Audit Assessment
Audit Audit Risk Response Adequately
Areas' Identification? Adequate? Documented?
(D (2) (3) 4)
Yes No Yes No Yes No
Audit Area
Cash L] L] L] L] L] ] ]
Receivables ] ] L] L] L] L] L]
Inventories ] ] L] L] L] L] L]
Investments ] ] L] L] L] L] L]
Prepaid Expenses,
Intangible Assets, and
Deferred Charges L] L] ] ] ] ] ]
Collections of Works of
Art and Similar Items ] ] ] ] ] L] ]
Property and Equipment ] L] L] ] ] ] ]
Liabilities O H ] ] ] ] L]
Deferred Revenue
and Support ] Ol ] ] ] ] ]
Commitments and
Contingencies L] L] ] ] ] ] ]
Net Assets ] ] L] L] L] L] L]
Revenue, Expenses,
and Support ] L] ] ] [l [l L]
Business Combinations and
Consolidations ] ] ] L] L] ] ]

If any “No” answers are identified in the preceding matrix for which a Matter for Further Consideration
(MFC) form was not generated, include an explanation in section V, “Explanation of ‘No’ Answers and Other
Comments.”

' Indicate with a checkmark.
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Review the work performed in the highest risk audit areas identified in the matrix and complete only those sections of
the subsequent checklist. In the audit areas reviewed, indicate whether the reviewed firm has obtained sufficient com-
petent evidential matter to form conclusions concerning the validity of the assertions of material significance embod-
ied in the financial statements as described in AU-C section 500, Audit Evidence (AICPA, Professional Standards).

Cash:
[ ] Selected audit area

Were reconciling items cleared by reference to subsequent statements
obtained either directly from the bank or from the client and appropriate-
ly tested?

Was due consideration given to cash transactions shortly before and
shortly after the balance-sheet date to determine whether they were rec-
orded in the proper period?

Does the audit documentation indicate that the following were consid-
ered? [AU-C 500, 505, and 230]

e Confirmation of cash balances
e Restrictions on cash balances

e Confirmation of bank credit arrangements such as compensating
balances

o Confirmation of liabilities and contingent liabilities to banks

Was adequate work performed and documented to support the conclu-
sions about this audit area?

Receivables:
[ ] Selected audit area

Were accounts, promises to give, and grant receivables confirmed and
appropriate follow-up steps taken, including second requests and alterna-
tive procedures? [AU-C 505.07 and .10—.14]

If accounts receivable confirmations, other than for contributions, were
not requested, has the auditor documented how the presumption for such
requests was overcome, and were the reasons appropriate? [AU-C
330.20]

If confirmation work was performed prior to year-end, is there evidence
that adequate substantive procedures were applied to the period from the
confirmation date to the balance-sheet date? [AU-C 330.23]

In the case of each nonresponse to confirmations, is there evidence that
alternative auditing procedures were performed to obtain relevant and
reliable audit evidence? [AU-C 505.12]

Were significant notes receivable confirmed as of a date consistent with
the auditor’s assessment of inherent, control, and detection risks? [AU-C
330.06-.07]

Il The “N/A” column should be used when the item either does not exist or is not material.

Ques. N/A" Yes No* Ref.

A201 [ ] [
A202 [ ] [
A203 [ ] [
A204 [ ] I
A205 [ ] [
A206 [ ] [
A207 [ ] I
A208 [ ] [
A209 [ ] I

* All “No” answers should be handled in either of the following ways: (1) discussed on an Matter for Further Consideration (MFC) form with the
MFC form number noted in the “Ref.” column, or (2) discussed on the pages provided at the end of this checklist if no MFC was generated.
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Ques. N/A Yes No Ref.

Were the results of confirmation and alternative procedures summarized,
and were appropriate conclusions included in the audit documentation?

[AU-C 230.08] A210 [ O] [
Was collateral (if any) for receivables tested with respect to existence,

ownership, and value? A211 ] L] Ol -
Were adequate tests of discounts and allowances made? A212 O] O] I

Were procedures performed to provide evidence that receivables for
promises to give were properly recorded as either unrestricted, temporar-
ily restricted, or permanently restricted? [AAG-NFP 5.91-.94] A213 [l [l [l

Was the reasonableness of allowances for doubtful accounts covered in
the audit documentation and collectability of receivables adequately con-
sidered? [AU-C 520.12-.14] A214 ] ] ]

Is there evidence in the working papers that inquiry was made and con-
sideration given to whether receivables are sold, pledged, assigned, or

otherwise encumbered? A215 ] L] Ol -
Was receivable work coordinated with tests of support and revenue,

including cutoff tests? A216 [ O] I
Was adequate work performed and documented to support the conclu-

sions about this audit area? A217 L] Ol [
Inventories:

[ ] Selected audit area

Does the audit documentation indicate that there were adequate tests of

inventory? [AU-C 331] Consider the following: A218 [ ] ]
e Physical observation, if material [AU-C 501.11-.13]
e The clerical accuracy of the inventory

e Costing methods and substantiation of costs used in pricing all
elements (raw material, work-in-process, and finished goods) of
the inventory

e Summaries and appropriate conclusions drawn from inventory
observations and other tests

Does the audit documentation indicate that consideration was given to
whether the inventory was carried at a lower of cost or market (including

consideration of obsolete or slow-moving inventory)? A219 [ ] ]
Were appropriate inventory cut-off tests performed? [AU-C 501.A23-

A24%%] A220 0 OO O
Does the audit documentation indicate that steps were performed to de-

termine if any inventory is pledged? [AU-C 501.A38%%] A221 ] ] ]
Was adequate work performed and documented to support the conclu-

sions about this audit area? A222 ] ] ]
Investments:

[ ] Selected audit area

For derivative instruments, hedging activities, and investments in securi-
ties, did the auditor obtain an understanding of the company’s internal
control sufficient to

o identify the types of potential misstatements of specific financial
statement assertions (existence, completeness, rights and obliga-
tions, valuation, and presentation and disclosure)? [AU-C 315.27] A223 ] ] ]
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e consider factors that affect the risk that the misstatements would
be material to the financial statements? [AU-C 315.27]

e design tests of controls, when applicable, and design substantive
tests? [AU-C 330.06]
Were securities either inspected or confirmed? [AU-C 330.18-24]

Did the auditor determine whether the applicable financial reporting
framework specifies the method to be used to determine the fair value
derivative instruments and investments in securities and evaluate wheth-
er the determination of fair value is consistent with the specified valua-
tion method? [AU-C 501.06]

Did the auditor obtain sufficient competent audit evidence to provide rea-
sonable assurance that fair value measurement and disclosures are in con-
formity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)? [AU-C
540]

Was adequate work performed and documented to support the conclu-
sions about this audit area?
Prepaid Expenses, Intangible Assets, and Deferred Charges:
[] Selected audit area
Were adequate tests made? Consider the following:
e Prepaid expenses
o Intangible assets [FASB ASC 350, Intangibles—Goodwill and

Others)
e Deferred charges
o  Other

Were reviews made for the deferral and amortization (or lack thereof) of
these types of assets?

If insurance policies were pledged as collateral or subjected to premium
financing, did the auditor consider whether the accounting for the related
loans was appropriate? [FASB ASC 835-30]

Was adequate work performed and documented to support the conclu-
sions about this audit area?

Collections of Works of Art and Similar Items: [AAG-NFP 7.38—-.43]
[] Selected audit area

If the collection has been capitalized, does the audit documentation indi-
cate that the auditor tested the reasonableness of the collection’s carrying
value?

Has the auditor considered whether or not a collection was capitalized,
and are the tests adequate with respect to accessions and deaccessions? If
the collection was capitalized,

e did the auditor observing the physical inventory count at all loca-
tions where relatively large amounts were located?

e when applicable, does the audit documentation contain evidence
that counts were correctly made and recorded (for instance, was
control over inventory tags or count sheets maintained, and were
test count quantities reconciled with the quantities reflected in the
final inventory)?
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If the collection was considered inexhaustible and was not capitalized,
does the audit documentation indicate that appropriate procedures were
applied and that the auditor considered the following: A236 L] L] L]

e Obtaining an understanding of and assessed control risk for the
internal controls over the collection

e Observing a physical inventory at all locations where relatively
large amounts are located
Property and Equipment: [AAG-NFP 9]
[] Selected audit area
Do the tests appear adequate and were proper conclusions drawn with

respect to the reporting and disclosure of property and equipment? Con-
sider the following: A237 ] ] ]

e Additions (for example, by examining supporting documents,
physical inspection, or both)

e Retirements (for example, including examining miscellaneous
income or scrap sales)

e The adequacy of the current and accumulated provisions for de-
preciation and depletion

e Valuation of assets not previously capitalized
e Property subject to liens

Have leases been reviewed to determine that capital, operating, sales,
and direct financing leases have been properly accounted for? [FASB

ASC 840, Leases] A238 ] ] ] _
Was adequate work performed and documented to support the conclu-

sions about this audit area? A239 ] ] ] L
Liabilities:

[ ] Selected audit area

Were accounts payable tested adequately? Consider whether A240 [ ] o

e an adequate search was performed for unrecorded liabilities at
the balance-sheet date.

e significant notes and bonds payable, together with interest rates
and repayment periods, were confirmed or if alternative proce-
dures were applied.

e the audit documentation indicates that the auditor reviewed com-
pliance with the covenants of the organization’s debt obligations.

Was adequate work performed and documented to support the conclu-
sions about this audit area? A241 ] ] ]

Deferred Revenue and Support: [AAG-NFP 5 and 12]
[] Selected audit area

Does the audit documentation indicate that consideration was given re-
garding whether the basis for deferring revenue is reasonable and con-
sistent with the earnings process for the transaction? A242 ] ] ]

Does the audit documentation indicate that consideration was given to
the appropriateness of the amounts of restricted gifts, grants, bequests,
donations, or other income recognized as current revenue or support? A243 ] ] ]

Was adequate work performed and documented to support the conclu-
sions about this audit area? A244 [ ] ]
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Commitments and Contingencies:
[ ] Selected audit area
Does the audit documentation contain evidence of the following:

e Inspection of minutes of meetings of the governing board and
other appropriate committees of the board

o Inspection of contracts, loan agreements, leases, and correspond-
ence from donors, grantors, and governmental agencies, and
similar documents

e Accumulation and analysis of confirmation responses from banks
and lawyers

Did the auditor consider evidence of the entity’s activities (such as lobby-
ing or substantial unrelated business income activities) that might cause the
entity to lose its tax exempt status or be subject to penalties or taxes?
[AAG-NFP 15.04-.23; FASB ASC 958-450-25-1]

If the entity is a private foundation, as defined by Internal Revenue Code
(IRC) Section 509, did the auditor determine whether the entity complied
with IRS regulations concerning required distribution of income and
prohibited activities? [AAG-NFP 15.37-.38]

Were the audit procedures regarding the financial instruments appropri-
ately designed, executed, and documented in the audit documentation?

Was appropriate consideration given to issues related to known envi-
ronmental matters? [FASB ASC 410-30]

Was adequate work performed and documented to support the conclu-
sions about this audit area?

Net Assets: [AAG-NFP 11]
[] Selected audit area

Does the audit documentation indicate that there were adequate inquiries,
when applicable, concerning proper classification, description, and dis-
closure of components of net assets as permanently restricted, temporari-
ly restricted, and unrestricted?

If an endowment fund was maintained, does the audit documentation
indicate that fund income was distributed to unrestricted and restricted
net assets in accordance with donors’ stipulations? [Paragraphs 13-35 of
FASB ASC 958-205-45]

Was adequate work performed and documented to support the conclu-
sions about this audit area?

Revenues, Expenses, and Support:
[ ] Selected audit area

Did the accountant perform procedures to determine that revenues were
properly classified and reported? Consider the following:

e Contributions received or made, including promises to give, were
recognized as revenue or expenses in the period received or made
at their fair values.

o Contributions that increase net assets were categorized as perma-
nently restricted, temporarily restricted, or unrestricted.
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e Donor-imposed restrictions, which expire, were recognized in the
period in which they expired.

e Contributions for services were recognized only if they created or
enhanced nonfinancial assets or require specialized skills and are
provided by individuals with those specialized skills that would
have typically been purchased if not provided by donation.
[FASB ASC 958-605-25-16 and 958-605-30-10]

e Revenues from exchange transactions are properly recognized
when earned. [AAG-NFP 12]

o Exchange transactions that are determined to be agency transac-
tions are excluded from revenues. [AAG-NFP 5.07-.22]

If substantive analytical procedures were performed on revenues, expenses,
and support for the period, was the analysis based on disaggregated data to
gain greater precision, as appropriate? [AU-C 520] A257

1 O

1 O

1 O
\

Was consideration given to matching requirements, if any? A258

Does the audit documentation indicate that consideration was given to
the valuation and classification of revenue derived from service fees,
such as subscription and membership income, and sales of publications
and other items? [Paragraphs 812 of FASB ASC 958-605-55; FASB
ASC 958-605-25-1] A259 ] ] ]

Were appropriate procedures performed to determine whether or not
revenue from and changes in the fair value of split-interest agreements
was properly recorded? [FASB ASC 958-30-25-4; Paragraphs 16-19 of
FASB ASC 958-30-25; Paragraphs 1-4 of FASB ASC 958-30-45] A260 [ ] ]

If the entity is reimbursed by a third party for costs incurred in connec-
tion with providing services to others, were [AAG-NFP 5]

e the pertinent sections of significant third-party contracts reviewed
to determine the basis for reimbursement? A261

10

10

10
|

e  cost reimbursement reports and the underlying support reviewed? A262
e appropriate allocations made of indirect costs among the entity’s
programs? [Paragraphs 32—33 of FASB ASC 958-720-55] A263 [ ] ]

Does the audit documentation indicate that the auditor considered actual
receipt and propriety of the valuation method used and any restrictions
placed on amounts received during the current period? Consider the fol-

lowing: A264 ] ] [
e Cash contributions [Paragraphs 1-6 of FASB ASC 958-605-25]

e Donated and contributed services [FASB ASC 958-605-25-16]

o Gifts of securities, materials, facilities, and other nonmonetary
items [Paragraphs 8—14 of FASB ASC 958-605-30]

e Split-interest agreements and interest free loans [FASB ASC 958-30
and 835-30]

If expenses are classified by function, did the auditor adequately test the
classifications and allocations? [AAG-NFP 13; FASB ASC 958-720] A265 [ ] ]

Were fundraising costs expensed in the proper period? [FASB ASC 958-
720-25-4] Consider the following: A266 [ L] L]
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e Has adequate consideration been given to review of joint activi-
ties that combine fund raising activities with other activities made
to document consistency and appropriate cost allocation method-
ology? [Paragraphs 28-55 of FASB ASC 958-720-45]

e Have cost allocations been reviewed to determine that supporting
services are appropriately allocated? [Paragraphs 6-14 of FASB
ASC 958-720-45]

If grants were awarded to other organizations, did the auditor perform
procedures to ensure proper accounting and reporting? [Paragraphs 1-3
of FASB ASC 958-720-25] Consider the following:

e  The recognition of grants

e The effects of the grantees’ compliance or noncompliance with
performance requirements

Were tests of payrolls, including account distribution, made, when ap-
propriate?

With regard to pension plans, do the tests made of the expense and liabil-
ities appear adequate?

Were substantive analytical procedures performed on revenue using dis-
aggregated data? [AU-C 520.A22%%*]

Was adequate work performed and documented to support the conclu-
sions about this audit area?

Business Combinations and Consolidations:

[ ] Selected audit area

If the entity is affiliated with or otherwise financially related to other
entities, did the auditor consider the need for consolidated or combined
financial statements or disclosure of the relationship? [FASB ASC 958-
810-25-4]

Was adequate work performed and documented to support the conclu-
sions about this audit area?
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Ques. N/A! Yes No* Ref.

Audit Sampling:
With regard to audit sampling, did the auditor consider A301 ] ] ]

o the purpose of the audit procedure and the characteristics of the
population from which the sample was drawn, when designing
the audit sample? [AU-C 530.06]

e determining the sample size sufficient to reduce sampling risk to
an acceptably low level? [AU-C 530.07]

e selecting items for the sample in such a way that the auditor
could reasonably expect the sample to be representative of the
relevant population and likely to provide the auditor with a rea-
sonable basis for conclusions about the population? [AU-C
530.08]

e if he or she was unable to apply the designed audit procedures,
or suitable alternative procedures to a selected item, treating the
item as a deviation from the prescribed control (in the case of
tests of controls) or a misstatement (in the case of tests of details)?
[AU-C 530.11]

e projecting the results of audit sampling to the population? [AU-C
530.13]

e evaluating the results of the sample, including sampling risk, and
whether the use of audit sampling provided a reasonable basis
for conclusions about the population that had been tested? [AU-
C 530.14]

Substantive Analytical Procedures:

If the auditor used analytical procedures as substantive procedures, did
the auditor properly consider professional guidelines regarding such
procedures? [AU-C 520] Did the auditor A302 ] ] ]

e determine the suitability of particular substantive analytical proce-
dures for given assertions, taking into account the assessed risks of
material misstatement, and test of details for these assertions?
[AU-C 520.054]

e cvaluate the reliability of data from which the auditor’s expecta-
tion of recorded amounts or ratios is developed? [AU-C 520.055]

e develop an expectation of recorded amounts or ratios and evaluate
whether the expectation is sufficiently precise to identify a mis-
statement that, individually or when aggregated with other mis-
statements, may cause the financial statements to be materially
misstated? [AU-C 520.05¢]

e determine the amount of any difference of recorded amounts from
expected values that is acceptable without further investigation
and compare the recorded amounts with expectations? [AU-C
520.05d]

II' The “N/A” column should be used when the item either does not exist or is not material.
* All “No” answers should be handled in either of the following ways: (1) discussed on a Matter for Further Consideration (MFC) form with the
MFC form number noted in the “Ref.” column or (2) discussed on the pages provided at the end of this checklist.
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investigate differences, when the auditor identifies fluctuations or
relationships that are inconsistent with other relevant information
or that differ from expected values by a significant amount, by
[AU-C 520.07]

— inquiring of management and obtaining appropriate audit
evidence relevant to management’s responses and

— performing other audit procedures, as necessary?
document the following: [AU-C 520.08]:

— The expectation of recorded amounts or ratios and the fac-
tors considered in its development when not readily deter-
minable from the audit documentation?

— The results of comparison of recorded amounts to expecta-
tions?

— Additional auditing procedures performed relating to the
investigation of fluctuations or relationships that are incon-
sistent with other relevant information or that differ from
expected values by a significant amount and the results of
such additional procedures?

Material Accounting Estimates:

Did the auditor properly consider and document the procedures applied
to material accounting estimates, when applicable? Consider the follow-

ing:

The auditor should obtain an understanding of the following in
order to provide a basis for the identification of the risks of ma-
terial misstatement for accounting estimates: [AU-C 540.08]

— The requirements of the applicable financial reporting
framework relevant to accounting estimates, including relat-
ed disclosures

— How management identifies those transactions, events, and
conditions that may give rise to the need for accounting
estimates to be recognized or disclosed in the financial
statements

— How management makes the accounting estimates and data
on which they are based

The auditor should review the outcome of accounting estimates
included in prior period financial statements or, when applica-
ble, their subsequent re-estimation for the purpose of the current
period. [AU-C 540.09]

When responding to the assessed risks of material misstatement,
the auditor should [AU-C 540.13]

— determine whether events occurring up to the date of the
auditor’s report provide evidence regarding the accounting
estimate;

— test how management made the accounting estimate and the
data on which it is based;

— test the operating effectiveness of the controls over how
management made the accounting estimate, together with
appropriate substantive procedures; and

— develop a point estimate or range to evaluate management’s
point estimate.

AICPA Peer Review Program Manual

Ques.

N/A

Not-for-Profit Audit Engagement Checklist (Ending on or After December 15, 2012)

Yes

20,627

No Ref.

A303

[

PRP §20,600



20,628 Peer Review Engagement Checklist—System Reviews 00-8 JAN 2014

Ques. N/A Yes No Ref.

o If management has not adequately addressed the effects of esti-
mation uncertainty on the accounting estimates that give rise to
significant risks, the auditor should, if considered necessary, de-
velop a range with which to evaluate the reasonableness of the
accounting estimate. [AU-C 540.16]

Representation Letters:

Did the auditor obtain written representations from management with
appropriate responsibilities for the financial statements and knowl-
edge of the matters concerned? [AU-C 580] Consider the following: A304 ] [l ]

e The representation letter was properly dated and covered all
periods referred to in the auditor’s report. [AU-C 580.20]

e The letter contains an acknowledgment that management has
fulfilled its responsibility for preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements and for internal controls relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
[AU-C 580.10]

e The letter acknowledges that management has provided the au-
ditor with all relevant information and access and all transac-
tions have been recorded and are reflected in the financial
statements [AU-C 580.11g]

e The letter disclosed management’s representations related to the
following:

— Fraud [AU-C 580.12]

— Laws and regulations [AU-C 580.13]

— Litigation and claims [AU-C 580.15]

— Related party transactions [AU-C 580.17]
— Subsequent events [AU-C 580.18]

e The letter provides representations about whether management
believes the effects of uncorrected misstatements are immaterial
to the financial statements as a whole. A summary of such items
should be included, or attached to, the written representation.
[AU-C 580.14]

e If the auditor determines that it is necessary to obtain one or
more written representations to support other audit evidence
relevant to the financial statements or more specific assertions
in the financial statements, the auditor should request such other
representations. [AU-C580.19]

Did the auditor obtain timely and appropriate responses from the enti-
ty’s attorneys concerning litigation, claims, and assessments or docu-
ment the consideration that it was not necessary to do so? [AU-C

510.18-.24] A305 ] ] [

Compliance With Laws and Regulations:

Did the auditor inspect correspondence, if any, with relevant licens-
ing or regulatory authorities? [AU-C 250.14b] A306 ] ] ]
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If the auditor’s procedures disclosed instances or indications of non-
compliance with laws and regulations, did the auditor apply procedures
and evaluate the results of those procedures in accordance with profes-
sional standards? [AU-C 250] Consider the requirements for the audi-
tor to
e follow up in accordance with professional standards. [AU-C
250.17-.20]

e report the noncompliance with laws and regulations to those
charged with governance in accordance with professional stand-
ards. [AU-C 250.21-.23]

e document a description of the identified or suspected noncompli-
ance with laws and regulations and the results of discussions with
management and, when applicable, those charged with govern-
ance and other parties inside or outside the entity. [AU-C 250.28]

Going Concern Considerations:

Did the auditor consider if there was substantial doubt about the enti-
ty’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time? [AU-C 570.03—.04]

If the auditor believed that there was substantial doubt about the enti-
ty’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time, did the auditor perform appropriate procedures? [AU-C 570]
Consider if

o the auditor obtained information about management’s plans that
are intended to mitigate the effect of such conditions or events
and evaluated the likelihood that such plans could be imple-
mented effectively. [AU-C 570.08-.11]

o the auditor documented [AU-C 570.22]

— the conditions or events that led to the belief that there is
substantial doubt about the entity’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

— the elements of management’s plans that the auditor con-
sidered to be particularly significant to overcoming the ad-
verse effects of the conditions or events.

— the auditing procedures performed and evidence obtained in
connection with the auditor’s evaluation of management’s
plans.

— the auditor’s conclusions as to whether substantial doubt
about the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern for
a reasonable period of time remains or is alleviated.

— the consideration and effect of the auditor’s conclusion on
the financial statements, disclosures, and the audit report.

o the auditor’s substantial doubt was alleviated, the auditor con-
sidered the need for disclosure of the principal conditions and
events that initially caused the auditor to believe there was sub-
stantial doubt together with the mitigating factors. [AU-C 570.13]

e the auditor’s substantial doubt was not alleviated, the auditor’s re-
port included an emphasis-of-matter paragraph that adequately
reflects that conclusion. The auditor’s conclusion should be ex-
pressed through the use of the terms substantial doubt and going
concern. [AU-C 570.15-.16]
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Did the written representations from management include the follow-
ing: [AU-C 570.14] A3l0 [ O ]

e Management’s plans that are intended to mitigate the adverse
effects of conditions or events that indicate there is substantial
doubt about the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time and the likelihood that those
plans can be effectively implemented

e A statement that the financial statements disclose all the matters
of which management is aware that are relevant to the entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern, including principal condi-
tions or events and management’s plans

Communication of Internal Control Related Matters:

Did the auditor report matters relating to the internal control to manage-
ment and those charged with governance? [AU-C 265] Consider if A311 ] ] ]

e deficiencies in internal control were identified during the audit,
the auditor performed an evaluation of each deficiency to deter-
mine, on the basis of the work performed, if the deficiencies
constituted significant deficiencies or material weaknesses.
[AU-C 265.09]

e consideration regarding whether prudent officials, having
knowledge of the same facts and circumstances, would likely
reach the same conclusion as the auditor’s classification of the
control deficiencies (for instance, material weakness, significant
deficiency, or control deficiency). [AU-C 265.10]

e other deficiencies in internal control identified during the audit
that have not been communicated to management by other par-
ties and that, in the auditor’s professional judgment, are of suffi-
cient importance to merit management’s attention. If other defic-
iencies in internal control are communicated orally, the auditor
should document the communication. [AU-C 265.12b]

e control deficiencies were determined to be significant deficien-
cies or material weaknesses, they were communicated in writing
to management and those charged with governance within 60
days following the audit report release date. [AU-C 265.11-.13]

o the auditor complied with the requirement not to issue a written
report stating that no significant deficiencies were identified
during an audit. [AU-C 265.16]

Did the written communication regarding significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses include or state the following: [AU-C 265.14] A312 ] ] ]

e The purpose of the audit was to express an opinion on the finan-
cial statements, but not to express an opinion on the effective-
ness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting.

e The auditor is not expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control.

e The definition of the term material weakness and, when rele-
vant, significant deficiency.

e An explanation of the potential effects of any significant defi-
ciencies or material weaknesses.

e An appropriate alert restricting the use of the communication.
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Subsequent Events:

Did the auditor consider information and apply appropriate profession-
al guidance with respect to events occurring subsequent to the date of
the audit report? [AU-C 560] Consider the following:

The auditor considered appropriate procedures regarding events
subsequent to the balance sheet date, through the date of the
auditor’s report. [AU-C 560.09-.10]

The auditor gave appropriate consideration to additional evi-
dence that became available prior to the issuance of the financial
statement. [AU-C 560.12—.14]

If the auditor became aware, subsequent to the report date, of
information that may have existed at the report date and that
might have affected the audit report on the financial statements
had the auditor then been aware of such information, the auditor
considered the guidance in professional standards in determining
an appropriate course of action and the matter appears to be
properly resolved. [AU-C 560.15—.18]

If there is an indication that the auditor concluded that one or
more auditing procedures considered necessary at the time of the
audit of the financial statements in the circumstances were omit-
ted from the audit, the auditor considered the guidance in profes-
sional standards in determining an appropriate course of action
and the matter appears to be properly resolved. [AU-C 585]

Communication With Those Charged With Governance:

Did the auditor substantively meet the professional standards regarding
auditor communications as follows:

Properly determine the appropriate persons within the audited
entity’s governance structure with whom to communicate [AU-
C 260.07-.09]

Communicate the following matters to those charged with gov-
ernance, when applicable:

— The auditor’s responsibilities for forming and expressing an
opinion on the financial statements under the applicable
financial reporting framework, and that the audit does not
relieve management or those charged with governance of
their responsibilities [AU-C 360.10]

— An overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit
[AU-C 360.11]

— The auditor’s views about qualitative aspects of the entity’s
significant accounting practices [AU-C 260.124]

— Any significant difficulties encountered during the audit
[AU-C 260.125]

— Any disagreements with management [AU-C 260.12c¢]

— Other findings or issues significant and relevant to those
charged with governance regarding their responsibility to
oversee the financial reporting process [AU-C 260.12d]

— Uncorrected misstatements and the effect they may have
had on the auditor’s report (The auditor should identify ma-
terial uncorrected misstatements individually and request
that they be corrected.) [AU-C 260.13¢a]
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— The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior
periods [AU-C 260.135]

— Material, corrected misstatements that were brought to the
attention of management as a result of audit procedures
[AU-C 260.14a]

— Any significant findings or issues arising from the audit that
were discussed or communicated to management [AU-C
260.14b]

— Management’s consultation with other accountants, if any
[AU-C 260.14c]

— Representations the auditor has requested from management
[AU-C 260.14d]

Communicate the form, timing, and expected general content of
the auditor’s communication with those charged with govern-
ance [AU-C 260.15]

Communicate, in a timely manner, and in writing, the significant
audit findings when, in the auditor’s judgment, oral communica-
tion would not be adequate; include in the written communica-
tion that such communication is intended solely for the
information and use of those charged with governance and man-
agement and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by
anyone other than these specified parties [AU-C 260.16—.17]

Consider whether the two-way communication between the au-
ditor and those charged with governance was adequate, and if
not, evaluate the effect, if any, on the auditor’s assessment of the
risks of material misstatement and ability to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence and should take appropriate action
[AU-C 260.19]

Document whether the information was communicated; if the
communication was oral, include when and to whom it was
communicated [AU-C 260.20]

Audit Documentation:

Has the auditor prepared and maintained audit documentation in ac-
cordance with professional standards? [AU-C 230] Consider the fol-
lowing requirements:

PRP §20,600

The audit documentation provides evidence of the auditor’s ba-
sis for a conclusion about the achievement of the overall objec-
tives of the auditor and evidence that the audit was planned and
performed in accordance with GAAS and applicable legal and
regulatory requirements. [AU-C 230.02]

The audit documentation is sufficient to enable an experienced
auditor having no previous connection to the audit to understand
the nature, timing, and extent of procedures performed; results of
the procedures performed; audit evidence obtained; and signifi-
cant findings or issues arising during the audit, the conclusions
reached thereon, and significant professional judgments made in
reaching those conclusions. [AU-C 230.08]
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e In documenting the nature, timing, and extent of audit procedures
performed, the auditor should record [AU-C 230.09]

— the identifying characteristics of the specific items or matters
tested,

— who performed the audit work and the date such work was
completed, and

— who reviewed the audit work performed and the date and
extent of such review.

e For audit procedures related to the inspection of significant con-
tracts or agreements, the auditor should include abstracts or cop-
ies of those contracts or agreements in the audit documentation.
[AU-C 230.10]

e The auditor should document discussions of significant findings
or issues with management, those charged with governance, and
others, including the nature of significant findings or issues dis-
cussed, and when and with whom the discussions took place.
[AU-C 230.11]

e If the auditor departs from a presumptively mandatory GAAS
requirement, the audit documented the justification for the de-
parture and how other procedures performed in the circumstanc-
es were sufficient to achieve the intent of that requirement. [AU-
C 230.13]

e If the auditor performs new or additional audit procedures or
draws new conclusions after the date of the auditor’s report, the
auditor should document the circumstances encountered; the
new or additional procedures performed, audit evidence ob-
tained, and conclusions reached, and their effect on the auditor’s
report; and when and by whom the resulting changes to audit
documentation were made and reviewed. [AU-C 230.14]

e The auditor should document the report release date in the audit
documentation. [AU-C 230.15]

e The auditor’s documentation was consistent with the assembling
of the engagement documentation file and completion of the
administrative process of assembling the audit file on a timely
basis, no later than 60 days following the report release date.
[AU-C 230.16]

e The auditor’s documentation established reasonable procedures
for retention of and access to audit documentation for a period of
at least five years. [AU-C 230.17]

o If the auditor finds it necessary to modify existing audit docu-
mentation or add new audit documentation after the documenta-
tion completion date, the auditor should document the specific
reasons for making the change and when and by whom they
were made and reviewed. [AU-C 230.18]

e The auditor should adopt reasonable procedures to maintain the
confidentiality of client information. [AU-C 230.19]
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e A record of the significant changes to the overall strategy and the
audit plan and resulting changes to the planned nature, timing, and
extent of audit procedures explain why the significant changes
were made and why the overall strategy and audit plan were final-
ly adopted for the audit. It also reflects the appropriate response to
the significant changes occurring during the audit. [AU-C
300.A23%*]

Were appropriate procedures applied to accompanying supplementary
information [AU-C 725.05-.08] and required supplementary infor-
mation? [AU-C 730] A316 L] L] L]

Were appropriate procedures applied to determine whether the addi-
tional disclosures required for obligors of public conduit debt were
required? [AAG-NFP 10.04] A317 [ ] ]

For the engagement, did the personnel adequately complete all forms,
checklists, or questionnaires, if applicable, required by firm policy for
the following areas? [QC 10.35—.51 and 10.A32—-.A62] A318 ] ] ]

e Work program
e Disclosure and reporting checklist

e Working paper and financial statement reviews

If standardized forms were not used for any of the preceding areas, is
there adequate documentation of these areas? [QC 10.35-.51 and

10.A32-.A62] A319 ] ] ]
Were the firm’s guidelines for the form and content of working papers
complied with? [QC 10.35-.51 and 10.A32-.A62] A320 ] ] ]

Supervision and Review:

Did the engagement partner take responsibility for the following: [AU-C
220.17] A321 [ 0 o

e The direction, supervision, and performance of the audit en-
gagement in compliance with professional standards, applicable
legal and regulatory requirements, and the firm’s policies and
procedures?

e The auditor’s report being appropriate in the circumstances?

Did the engagement partner take responsibility for reviews being per-
formed in accordance with the firm’s review policies and procedures?
[AU-C 220.18] A322 ] ] ]

Did the engagement partner, through review of the audit documentation
and discussion with the engagement team, determine that sufficient
appropriate audit evidence was obtained to support the auditor’s report
issued? [AU-C 220.19] A323 L] L] L]

Did the auditor perform substantive procedures relating to the financial
statement closing process, such as agreeing or reconciling the financial
statements with the underlying accounting records and examining ma-
terial journal entries and other adjustments made during the course of
preparing the financial statements? [AU-C 330.21] A324 ] ] ]

Did the auditor determine whether uncorrected misstatements were
material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial state-
ments? The auditor should consider the following: [AU-C 450.11] A325 ] ] ]
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e The size and nature of the misstatements, both in relation to par-
ticular classes of transactions, account balances, or disclosures
and the financial statements as a whole, and the particular cir-
cumstances of their occurrence

e The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods
on the relevant classes of transactions, account balances, or dis-
closures and the financial statement as a whole

Does it appear (lack of contrary evidence) that the firm established
policies to assign management responsibilities so that commercial con-
siderations did not override the quality of work performed; established
policies and procedures that address performance evaluation, compen-
sation, and advancement (including incentive systems) with regard to
its personnel, in order to demonstrate the firm’s overarching commit-
ment to quality; and provided sufficient and appropriate resources for
the development, documentation, and support of its quality control poli-
cies and procedures? [QC 10.A5]

Does it appear engagement personnel (including leased and per diem
employees) possessed an appropriate mix of experience or expertise
and technical training in relation to the complexity or other require-
ments of the engagement and the involvement of supervisory person-
nel? [QC 10.31-.34 and 10.A17-.A31]

Did the personnel assigned to this engagement appear to be familiar with
the applicable professional pronouncements (FASB, AICPA, or any oth-
er institutions)? [QC 10.31-.34 and 10.A17—.A31]

Were the engagement team’s audit hours reasonable for this engage-
ment (including prior to commencement of field work and during and
after completion of field work)?

Does it appear that the practitioner in charge of the engagement pos-
sessed the following knowledge, skills, and abilities (competencies) to
fulfill his or her responsibilities on the engagement including an under-
standing of [QC 10.A18—.A21 and 10.A24—.A35]

o the role of the firm’s system of quality control and the AICPA
Code of Professional Conduct?

o the performance, supervision, and reporting aspects of the en-
gagement?

o the applicable accounting, auditing, or attestation professional
standards, including those standards directly related to the indus-
try in which a client operates?

o the industry in which a client operates, including the industry’s
organization and operating characteristics, to identify the areas
of high or unusual risk associated with an engagement and to
evaluate the reasonableness of industry specific estimates?

o the skills that indicate sound professional judgment?

e how the organization is dependent on or enabled by information
technologies and the manner in which information systems are
used to record and maintain financial information?

If required by firm policy, was the staff on this engagement appropri-
ately evaluated? [QC 10.32 and 10.A22-.A23]
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Does it appear that involvement by the engagement partner, manager,

and, when applicable, the engagement quality control reviewer was

adequate and appropriately timed to provide for planning and supervi-

sion as the job progressed? [QC 10.35-.51 and 10.A32—.A62] A332 ] ] ] _
If required by firm policy, was an appropriate preissuance review com-

pleted and documented? [QC 10.35—.51 and 10.A32—.A62] A333 ] ] ]

Were the firm’s guidelines for the performance of an Engagement

Quality Review complied with? [QC 10.35-.51 and 10.A32—-.A62] A334 ] ] ]

Were any circumstances noted in which the firm consulted or should
have consulted regarding an engagement matter (that is, a complex,
unusual, or technical issue) with individuals within the firm, an exter-
nal party, or by researching in applicable professional literature based
on the firm’s policies and procedures or when the complexity or nature
of the issue warranted consultation? [QC 10.35-.51 and 10.A32—.A62]
Consider A335 L] ] [

o if an individual was consulted (internally or externally), was the
consultation done on a timely basis and does it appear he or she
was aware of all relevant facts and circumstances?

o if professional literature was researched, does it appear the re-
search was thorough and the sources consulted were complete,
correct, and up-to-date?

e does it appear the person(s) consulted (internally or externally)
or the individual(s) performing the research, or both, had an ap-
propriate level of knowledge, competence, judgment, and (if
applicable) authority?

e based on the facts and circumstances, were the firm’s conclu-
sions reasonable and consistent with professional standards?

o s the firm’s report, the financial statements, or other information
affected by the matter consistent with the results of the consulta-
tion?

o if the engagement records indicated a difference of opinion be-
tween the engagement personnel, specialist, or other consultant,
was the difference resolved in accordance with firm policy and
was the basis of the resolution appropriately documented?
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IV. AUDITOR’S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Auditor’s Report:

Is the report dated in conformity with the requirements of professional
standards? [AU-C 700.41]

The audit report should be dated no earlier than the date on
which the auditor has obtained sufficient appropriate audit evi-
dence on which to base the auditor’s opinion on the financial
statements, including evidence that

— the audit documentation has been reviewed;

— all the statements that the financial statements comprise,
including the related notes, have been prepared; and

— management has asserted that they have taken responsibility
for those financial statements.

Does the report appropriately include the basic elements required under
professional standards and is appropriate language used for modifying
the report in the circumstances described in such standards? [AU-C
700.22—.41 and 705] The report should

be in writing. [AU-C 700.22]
include the word independent. [AU-C 700.23]

be addressed as required by the circumstances of the engage-
ment. [AU-C 700.24]

identify the entity whose financial statements have been audited,
state that the financial statements have been audited, identify the
title of each statement that the financial statements comprise, and
specify the date or periods covered by each financial statement
that the financial statements comprise. [AU-C 700.25]

include a section with the heading “Management’s Responsibil-
ity for the Financial Statements.” [AU-C 700.26]

describe management’s responsibility for the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements. The description of
management’s responsibility should not be referenced to a sepa-
rate statement by management about such responsibilities, if
such a statement is included in a document containing the audi-
tor’s report. [AU-C 700.27-.28]

include a section with the heading “Auditor’s Responsibility.”
[AU-C 700.29]

state that the audit was conducted in accordance with GAAS and
should identify the United States of America as the country of
origin of those standards. [AU-C 700.31]

include a section with the heading “Opinion.” [AU-C 700.34]

identify the applicable financial reporting framework and its
origin. [AU-C 700.36]

be appropriately modified in accordance with professional
standards, if applicable. [AU-C 705]

I The “N/A” column should be used when the item either does not exist or is not material.

Ques. N/A! Yes No* Ref.

A401 [ ] o

A402 [ ] o

* All “No” answers should be handled in either of the following ways: (1) discussed on a Matter for Further Consideration (MFC) form with the
MFC form number noted in the “Ref.” column or (2) discussed on the pages provided at the end of this checklist.
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Ques. N/A Yes No Ref.

Does the report include all of the required elements for a special purpose
financial statement? [AU-C 800] Consider the following: A403 [ ] ]

e The explanation of management’s responsibility should also make
reference to its responsibility for determining that the applicable
financial reporting framework is acceptable in the circumstances,
when management has a choice of financial reporting frameworks
in the preparation of such financial statements. [AU-C 800.184]

e The report should describe the purpose for which the financial
statements are prepared or refer to a note that contains that infor-
mation, when the financial statements are prepared in accordance
with a regulatory or contractual basis of accounting. [AU-C
800.185]

e Professional standards have been properly complied with for re-
ports on single financial statements and specific elements. [AU-C
805]

e If the special purpose financial statements are not prepared in ac-
cordance with a regulatory basis of accounting intended for general
use, the report should include an emphasis-of-matter paragraph
under an appropriate heading that indicates that the financial state-
ments are prepared in accordance with the applicable special pur-
pose framework, refers to the note to the financial statements that
describes that framework, and states that the special purpose
framework is a basis of accounting other than GAAP. [AU-C
800.19 and .21]

e If the auditor is required by law or regulation to use a specific
layout, form, or wording of the auditor’s report, the auditor’s
report should contain the minimum elements required by GAAS.
[AU-C 800.22]

If the financial statements of a prior period are presented and have been
audited by a predecessor auditor whose report is not presented, and the
predecessor auditor’s report on the prior period’s financial statements is
not reissued, has the successor auditor included the appropriate reference
to the predecessor auditor in an other-matter paragraph? [AU-C 700.54] A404 L] L] L]

If the prior year’s financial statements are summarized and, therefore, do
not include the minimum information required by GAAP, is the auditor’s
report appropriate? [AU-C 700.46] Consider the following: A405 [ ] ]

e The auditor’s report should not mention the summarized infor-
mation in the description of the financial statements audited or in
the opinion paragraph. [AU-C 700.A47%*]

e The auditor’s report should be clear about the degree of responsi-
bility taken with respect to the prior year(s) summarized infor-
mation.

If the entity presents supplementary information with the financial
statements, does the auditor report on the supplementary information in
either (a) an explanatory paragraph in accordance with AU-C section
706, Emphasis-of-Matter Paragraphs and Other-Matter Paragraphs in
the Independent Auditor’s Report (AICPA, Professional Standards), or
(b) in a separate report on the supplementary information? The other-
matter paragraph or separate report should include the following ele-
ments: [AU-C 725.09] Ad406 [ ] ]
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A statement that the audit was conducted for the purpose of form-
ing an opinion on the financial statements as a whole [AU-C
725.09q]

A statement that the supplementary information is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
financial statements [AU-C 725.095]

A statement that the supplementary information is the responsi-
bility of management and was derived from, and relates directly
to, the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the financial statements [AU-C 725.09¢]

A statement that the supplementary information has been subject-
ed to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including com-
paring and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial state-
ments or to the financial statements themselves and other addi-
tional procedures, in accordance with GAAS [AU-C 725.09d]

If the auditor issues an unqualified opinion on the financial
statements and the auditor has concluded that the supplementary
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the financial statements as a whole, a statement that, in the audi-
tor's opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a
whole [AU-C 725.09¢]

If the auditor issues a qualified opinion on the financial state-
ments and the qualification has an effect on the supplementary
information, a statement that, in the auditor's opinion, except for
the effects on the supplementary information of (refer to the
paragraph in the auditor's report explaining the qualification),
such information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in rela-
tion to the financial statements as a whole [AU-C 725.09f]

If the use of the report has been restricted, did the auditor comply with
the applicable provisions about restricting the use of the auditor’s written
communication? [AU-C 905]

Financial Statements and Notes:

If the entity is deemed to be a governmental entity, do the financial
statements conform to the provisions of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 29, The Use of Not-for-Profit Accounting
and Financial Reporting Principles by Governmental Entities?

Is the accounting appropriate and are the basic financial statement dis-
closures adequate? Consider the following:

The financial statements are suitably titled. [AU-C 700.16f]

The statement formats and disclosures are generally consistent with
the appropriate industry-based AICPA Audit Guide and AICPA
Statements of Position.

Has the IRC section under which the organization is exempt been
disclosed? [Generally Accepted]

AICPA Peer Review Program Manual
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Ques. N/A Yes No Ref.

A407 [ ] ] -
A408 [ ] [
A409 [ ] [
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Ques. N/A Yes No Ref.

e The disclosures are adequate concerning significant accounting
policies, including a description of the nature of each fund, if
applicable (for instance, general, plant, endowment, unrestricted,
temporarily restricted, and permanently restricted). [Paragraphs
3-6 of FASB ASC 235-10-50; AU-C 700.15-.18]

e Disclosures for accounting changes are made. [FASB ASC 250,
Accounting Changes and Error Corrections]

e The basic financial statements should focus on the entity as a
whole and consist of a statement of financial position (or balance
sheet), Statement of Activities (or Statement of Revenues and
Expense) in which the amount of the change in net assets articu-
lates to the statement of financial position, and a statement of
cash flows, and accompanying notes. [FASB ASC 958-205, 958-
210, 958-225, and 958-230]

e Net assets and changes in net assets should be classified as (@)
permanently restricted, (b) temporarily restricted, or (¢) unrestrict-
ed, based on donor imposed restrictions or relevant law. [FASB
ASC 958-225; FASB ASC glossary term donor imposed re-
strictions|

e Information is provided about the nature and amounts of different
types of permanent restrictions and temporary restrictions. [FASB
ASC 958-210-45-9]

e If prior year information is summarized and does not include the
minimum information required by FASB ASC 958, Not-for-Profit
Entities, and the appropriate industry-based AICPA Audit Guide,
the nature of the prior year information is described by appropriate
titles and in the notes. [FASB ASC 958-205-45-8; AAG-NFP 3.57]

e If the entity disclosed the ratio of fundraising expenses to the
amount raised, there was disclosure of the method of computing
that ratio. [FASB ASC 958-205-50-3]

e Required disclosures about risks and uncertainties are made re-
garding the nature of operations, the use of estimates, certain
significant estimates, and current vulnerabilities due to certain
concentrations. [FASB ASC 275-10-50]

e Insurance and reinsurance contracts that do not transfer insurance
risk are properly accounted for and disclosed. [FASB ASC 340-30]

e Nonmonetary transactions are properly accounted for and dis-
closed. [FASB ASC 845-10, 605-40, and 740-10-55-66]

e The effect of subsequent events including disclosure of significant
subsequent events, whether or not adjustments were made. [FASB
ASC 450-20-25-2 and 855-10; AU-C 560]

e Adjustments of financial statements related to prior periods were
made. [FASB ASC 250-10; Paragraphs 12—18 of FASB ASC
270-10-45]

For financial instruments and derivatives are disclosures adequate?
[FASB ASC 825-10-50 and 815-10-50] A410 [ [l [l

If the nonprofit organization chooses to show restricted contributions
(including contributions of long-lived assets) whose restrictions are met
in the same reporting period as unrestricted contributions, is the policy
followed consistently for all such contributions, is there a similar policy
for reporting gains and investment income, and is the policy disclosed?
[FASB ASC 958-225-45-6 and 958-320-45-3] A411 ] [l ]
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Is a description of the organization’s activities, including each major
class of programs, disclosed? [FASB ASC 958-205-50-1, 958-720-45-5,
and 958-720-50-1]

Is the accounting and reporting for contingencies and commitments
adequate? Consider the following:

Loss contingencies are accrued or disclosed, or both, as appropri-
ate. [FASB ASC 450-20; Paragraphs 1-3 of FASB ASC 460-10-
50]

Other contingencies and commitments are adequately disclosed,
including environmental remediation-related matters. [FASB ASC
440-10-50, 505-10-50-11, 450-10,450-30, and 410-30; Paragraphs
3—4 of FASB ASC 505-10-45;“Pending Content” in Paragraphs
19-20 of FASB ASC 805-20-25]

Failure to maintain an appropriate composition of assets in
amounts needed to comply with all donor restrictions.

Note: Such noncompliance could result in a material contingent
liability at the financial statement date, lead to a material loss of
revenue, or cause an inability to continue as a going concern.
[FASB ASC 958-450-50]

Is the accounting and reporting adequate concerning employee benefit,
postemployment, and postretirement benefit plans and obligations?
[FASB ASC 958-715] Consider the following:

Defined benefit pension plans [FASB ASC 715-20, 715-30, and
715-80]

Defined contribution pension plans [FASB ASC 715-70]

Other pension, profit sharing, or other employee benefit plans
[FASB ASC 718, Compensation—Stock Compensation]

Postretirement plans other than pensions [FASB ASC 715-20,
715-60, and 715-80]

Postemployment benefits (after employment but before retirement)
[FASB ASC 712, Compensation—Nonretirement Postemployment
Benefits]

Is the accounting adequate and disclosures appropriate concerning relat-
ed party transactions? [FASB ASC 850, Related Party Disclosures] Con-
sider the following:

Related entities reported in conformity with FASB ASC 958-810
for (a) investments in for-profit majority-owned subsidiaries (con-
solidated in conformity with FASB ASC 810, Consolidation); (b)
investment in common stock of for-profit entities of 50 percent or
less voting interest (equity method in conformity with FASB ASC
323-10); and (c¢) financially interrelated nonprofit organizations.
[FASB ASC 958-810]

Related party transactions with noncombined affiliated entities,
contributors of restricted funds, board members, officers, and
employees adequately disclosed. [FASB ASC 958-810-25-4 and
958-810-50-2]
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Ques. N/A Yes No Ref.
Statement of Financial Position:
Does the statement of financial position report total assets, liabilities,
and net assets, as well as separate amounts for each of the three classes
of net assets with captions used to describe their meaning, as explained
in FASB ASC 958-210? [AAG-NFP 3.07, 11.09, and 11.19] A416 L] L] L]

Are amounts in the Statement of Financial Position properly presented?
Consider the following: A417 ] ] ]

e The reporting of the amounts of the entity’s total assets, liabili-
ties, and net assets is presented. [Paragraphs 1-3 of FASB ASC
958-210-45]

e Cash and other assets received with a long-term donor imposed
restrictions are classified separately from those assets that are
unrestricted and available for current use. [Paragraphs 5-6 of
FASB ASC 958-210-45]

o The statement provides information about liquidity by one or more
of the following: (a) sequencing assets according to their nearness
to cash and liabilities according to their nearness to maturity, (b)
classifying assets and liabilities as current and noncurrent [FASB
ASC 210-10], or (c) footnote disclosure about the liquidity or ma-
turity of assets and liabilities, including restrictions on the use of
particular assets. [FASB ASC 958-210-50-1]

e  When the recipient organization has not explicitly been granted
variance power, the beneficiary has recognized its rights to the
assets (financial and nonfinancial) held by that recipient organi-
zation as an asset. [FASB ASC 958-605-25-28]

Are related assets and liabilities offset only when appropriate? [Para-
graphs 1-5 and 8 of FASB ASC 210-20-45; FASB ASC 210-20-15-3] A418 ] ] ]

Cash and Investments:

Is the accounting appropriate and are the disclosures adequate for cash
and investments? Consider the following: A419 ] ] ]

e Restricted cash including compensating balances [Paragraph 4a
of FASB ASC 210-10-45; FASB ASC 958-210-45-7]

e Cash or other assets with a donor-imposed restriction for a long-
term purpose [FASB ASC 958-210-45-6 and 958-210-50]

e Bank overdrafts reclassified to and presented separately in cur-
rent liabilities [Generally Accepted]

e Held checks (for instance, those written before but not released
until after the balance sheet date) reclassified to accounts payable
[Generally Accepted]

e Investments, including derivative instruments and hedging activi-
ties [FASB ASC 958-320 and 958-325; FASB ASC 815, Deriva-
tives and Hedging; FASB ASC 320, Investments—Debt and Equity
Securities; FASB ASC 323, Investments—Equity Method and Joint
Ventures; FASB ASC 325, Investments—Other|

e Terms or circumstances concerning repurchase or reverse repur-
chase agreements [Paragraphs 11-17 of FASB ASC 210-20-45]
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Ques. N/A Yes No Ref.

Fair Value Measurements:

Have the following been disclosed for assets and liabilities measured at
fair value on a recurring basis, separately for each major category of
assets and liabilities, with quantitative disclosures presented in tabular
format: [FASB ASC 820-10-50-2] A420 [ ] [l

e The fair value measurements?

e The level within the fair value hierarchy level in which the fair
value measurements fall, segregating fair value measurements
using level 1, level 2, and level 3 inputs?

e For fair value measurements using level 3 inputs, a reconciliation
of the beginning and ending balances, separately presenting
changes attributable to (disclosures for derivative assets and lia-
bilities may be presented net)

— total gains or losses for the period (realized and unrealized),
segregating those gains or losses included in earnings and a
description of where such gains or losses are reported in the
income statement?

— purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements (net)?

— transfers in or out of level 3 (for example, transfers due to
changes in the observability of significant inputs)?

— total gains or losses for the period included in earnings due
to the change in unrealized gains or losses that relate to
assets and liabilities held at the reporting date and a descrip-
tion of where such unrealized gains or losses are reported in
the income statement?

— the valuation technique(s) used in measuring fair value and a
discussion of any changes in valuation techniques during the
period?

Have the following been disclosed for assets and liabilities measured at
fair value on a nonrecurring basis, separately for each major category of
assets and liabilities, with quantitative disclosures presented in tabular
format: [FASB ASC 820-10-50-5] A421 L] L] L]

e Fair value measurements recorded during the period and the rea-
sons for such measurements?

e The level within the fair value hierarchy in which the fair value
measurements fall, segregating fair value measurements using
level 1, level 2, and level 3 inputs?

e For fair value measurements using level 3 inputs, a description of
those inputs and the information used to develop the inputs?

e The valuation technique(s) used in measuring fair value and a
discussion of any changes in the valuation technique(s) used to
measure similar assets or liabilities in prior periods?

If assets or liabilities have been measured at fair value under the fair
value option allowed by FASB ASC 825, Financial Instruments, have
the necessary disclosures been made? [Paragraphs 24-32 of FASB ASC
825-10-50] A422 ] ] ]

Conditional and Unconditional Receivables:

Are the disclosures for unconditional promises receivable adequate?
[FASB ASC 958-310-50-1] Consider the following: A423 [ ] ]

AICPA Peer Review Program Manual PRP §20,600



20,644 Peer Review Engagement Checklist—System Reviews 00-8 JAN 2014

Ques. N/A Yes No Ref.

e The amount of receivables in less than one year, in one to five
years, and in more than five years

e The amount of the allowance for uncollectible accounts

e The discount on contributions receivable that arises when the
contribution is measured using a present value method

e Receipts of unconditional promises to give with payments due in
future years are recognized as restricted unless circumstances
make it clear the donor intended it to be used to support current
activities [FASB ASC 958-605-45-5]

Are the applicable disclosures for conditional promises adequate?
[FASB ASC 958-310-50-4] Consider the following: A424 [ ] ]

e The total amounts of the conditional promises

e A description and the amount for each group of conditional
promises having similar characteristics

e Reporting conditional promises to give, whether received or
made, as refundable advances and recognized as contributions
when they become unconditional (for instance, when the condi-
tions are substantially met) [Paragraphs 11-15 of FASB ASC
958-605-25; FASB ASC 958-605-55-16]

Are the disclosures adequate concerning transfers of assets to a recipient
when the entity specifies itself or its affiliate as the beneficiary? [FASB

ASC 958-20-50-1 and 958-605-50-6] Consider the following: A425 ] ] ]
e The identity of the recipient organization to which the transfer
was made

e  Whether variance power was granted to the recipient organization
and, if so, the terms of the variance power

e The terms under which the amounts will be distributed to the
resource provider or its affiliate

e The aggregate amount recognized in the statement of financial
position for these transfers and whether that amount is recorded
as an interest in the net assets of the recipient organization

Is the accounting appropriate and are the disclosures adequate for other
events or transactions affecting receivables transactions? Consider the
following: A426 [] ] ]

e Valuation allowances [Paragraphs 7-11 of FASB ASC 310-10-
35; FASB ASC 310-10-45-4 and 310-10-50-14]

e The effect of interest rates that do not reflect market rates [Para-
graphs 12-13 of FASB ASC 835-30-25]

e Legally enforceable pledges
e Other receivables
Inventories:

Is the accounting appropriate and are the disclosures adequate for inven-
tories? [FASB ASC 330-10] A427 ] ] ]
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Fixed Assets and Other Noncurrent Assets:
Is the accounting appropriate and are disclosures adequate concerning
fixed assets? Consider the following:

e Collections of works of art, historical properties or treasures, or
similar items [FASB ASC 958-605-25-19; Paragraphs 1-3 of
FASB ASC 958-360-25; Paragraphs 3—5 of FASB ASC 958-360-
45; Paragraphs 1 and 3—4 of FASB ASC 958-360-35]

e Impairment and disclosure [FASB ASC 958-225-45-11, 360-10-
45-4, and 360-10-50-2; Paragraphs 9-11 of FASB ASC 360-10-
45]

e Purchased fixed assets [Paragraphs 1-4 of FASB ASC 958-360-
50]

e Donated fixed assets [FASB ASC 958-360-30-1; Paragraphs 14 of
FASB ASC 958-360-50]

e Capitalization policy [Paragraphs 1-2 of FASB ASC 958-360-50]

e Accounting for depreciation, including disclosures of deprecia-
tion policy for inexhaustible assets [Paragraphs 1-7 of FASB
ASC 958-360-35-7; Paragraphs 1-2 of FASB ASC 958-360-45;
Paragraphs 1-2 of FASB ASC 958-360-50]

e  Major classes of depreciable assets

e Accumulated depreciation, as well as a general description of the
method used in computing depreciation

e Capitalized interest [FASB ASC 958-835-20]

e Restrictions on use or disposal imposed by donor [Paragraphs 1—
4 of FASB ASC 958-360-50]

e Sales-type, direct financing, leveraged, and operating leases of
lessors [FASB ASC 840, Leases]

Other Assets:

Is the accounting appropriate and are disclosures adequate concerning
other asset amounts? Consider the following:

e Other assets, including intangible assets, unamortized computer
software costs, and deferred charges and their impairment, if ap-
plicable. [FASB ASC 340-10; FASB ASC 350, Intangibles—
Goodwill and Other]

Are pledged assets properly disclosed? [FASB ASC 440-10-50-1]

Current Liabilities:

Is the accounting appropriate and are disclosures adequate concerning cur-
rent liabilities? [Paragraphs 5—12 of FASB ASC 210-10-45; Paragraphs 9—
12 of FASB ASC 470-10-45] Consider the following:

e Short-term liabilities expected to be refinanced. [Paragraphs 12A-
21 of FASB ASC 470-10-45; FASB ASC 470-10-50-4; Paragraphs
33-36 of FASB ASC 470-10-55]
Notes Payable and Other Debt:

Is the accounting appropriate and are disclosures adequate concerning
notes payable and other debt? Consider the following:

e  Maturities and rates
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Ques. N/A Yes No Ref.

e The effect of interest rates that do not reflect market rates [Para-
graphs 12-13 of FASB ASC 835-30-25]

e Maturities and sinking fund requirements for the next five years
[FASB ASC 470-10-50-1]

e Obligations under capital leases [FASB ASC 840-30]

e Obligations associated with retirements of long-lived assets [FASB
ASC 410-20]

e Liabilities associated with exit or disposal of long-lived assets
[Paragraphs 15-49 of FASB ASC 360-10-35]

e  Other liabilities and deferred credits, including environmental re-
mediation liabilities, employees’ compensation for future absences,
special termination benefits to employees, and deferred revenue
and support [Paragraphs 1-3 of FASB ASC 710-10-25-1; Para-
graphs 6-8 of FASB ASC 710-10-25; FASB ASC 710-10-50-1,
410-30, 712-10, and 430-10]

Statement of Activities:

Does the Statement of Activities properly report net assets and changes
in net assets? Consider the following: A433 [ ] ]

e The amount of change in net assets for the period using a descrip-
tive term such as change in net assets or change in equity [FASB
ASC 958-205-05-7 and 958-225-45-2]

e The amount of change in permanently restricted, temporarily
restricted, and unrestricted net assets [FASB ASC 958-225-45-1]

e Events (for example, expiration of donor imposed restrictions) that
simultaneously increase one class of net assets and decrease anoth-
er (reclassifications) presented as separate items [FASB ASC 958-
225-45-3]

e When an intermediate measure of operations is reported, regard-
less of the description, that measure is included in a change in
unrestricted net assets for the period [FASB ASC 958-225-45-10]

Revenues and Contributions:

Is the accounting appropriate and are disclosures adequate concerning
revenues and contributions received? Consider the following: A434 ] ] ]

e Revenues should be reported as increases in unrestricted net as-
sets unless the use of the assets received is limited by donor-
imposed restrictions. [FASB ASC 958-225-45-5]

e Agency transactions are excluded from revenues. [AAG-NFP
5.07-.22]

e Exchange transactions and contributions are properly categorized
and reported. [AAG-NFP 5.39-.57]

o Contributions received, including unconditional promises to give,
should be recognized at their fair value as revenues in the period
received. [FASB ASC 958-605-30-2]
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Ques. N/A Yes No Ref.

e For contributions involving the transfer of assets to the organiza-
tion or a charitable trust (the “recipient organization™) for which
the not-for-profit entity (NFP) agrees to use those assets on behalf
of or to transfer those assets, the return on investment of those as-
sets, or both to an unaffiliated entity (the “beneficiary”) as speci-
fied by the donor, such contributions are properly accounted for
and reported by the recipient, the beneficiary organizations, or
both, as applicable. [FASB ASC 958-20, 958-30, and 958-605]

e Contributions received should be classified as permanently re-
stricted, temporarily restricted, and unrestricted based upon
donor-imposed restrictions, relevant law, or both. [Paragraphs 3—
6 of FASB ASC 958-605-45; Paragraphs 1-2 of FASB ASC 958-
360-50; FASB ASC 958-605-50-2]

e Gross amounts of revenues (including those for special events
that are ongoing and major activities) and investment revenues
are reported either in the footnotes or on the face of the financial
statements. [Paragraphs 14-17 of FASB ASC 958-225-45; FASB
ASC 958-720-05-4 and 958-225-45-17]

o Gifts of long-lived assets whether or not the accounting policy is
to imply a time restriction that expires over the estimated useful
life of the respective assets are disclosed. [FASB ASC 958-360-
50-1 and 958-605-45-6]

e  Subscription and membership income are disclosed. [Paragraphs
8-12 of FASB ASC 958-605-55; FASB ASC 958-605-25-1]

Are the following disclosed about contributed services received: [FASB

ASC 958-605-50-1] A435  [] ] ]
e The programs or activities for which the contributed services
were used

e The nature and extent of contributed services received for the
period

e The amount of contributed services recognized as revenues for
the period

e If practical, the fair value of contributed services received but not
recognized as revenues

Expenses:

Is the accounting appropriate and are disclosures adequate concerning
expenses (including those for special events that are ongoing and major
activities)? Consider the following: A436 [ ] ]

e Expenses are reported as decreases in unrestricted net assets.
[FASB ASC 958-225-45-7]

e Contributions made, including unconditional promises to give,
are reported as expenses in the period made, at their fair values.
[Paragraphs 1-2 of FASB ASC 720-25-25; FASB ASC 720-25-
30-1]

e Gross amounts of expenses (including those for special events
that are ongoing and major activities) and investment expenses,
are reported either in the footnotes or on the face of the financial
statements. [Paragraphs 14—17 of FASB ASC 958-225-45; FASB
ASC 958-720-05-4 and 958-320-45-4]
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e For voluntary health and welfare organizations, expenses by both
functional and natural classifications are reported in a matrix
format in a separate statement. [FASB ASC 958-205-45-6]

e Advertising costs are reported. [FASB ASC 720-35 and 340-20]
e Depreciation is reported. [FASB ASC 360-10 and 958-360]

e Deferred compensation agreements are reported. [FASB ASC
710; FASB ASC 712, Compensation—Nonretirement Postemplo-
yment Benefits; FASB ASC 715, Compensation—Retirement
Benefits; FASB ASC 958-715]

e Operating leases and rent expense of lessees are reported. [FASB
ASC 840-20-25-1 and 840-10-50-2; Paragraphs 1-3 of FASB
ASC 840-20-50]

Is the total cost of all fund-raising activities disclosed? [FASB ASC 958-
720-50-1; Paragraphs 9—10 of FASB ASC 958-720-45] A437 ] ] ]

Are expenses reported by their functional classification (such as major
classes of program services and supporting activities) either on the face
of the Statement of Activities or in the notes to the financial statements?
[FASB ASC 958-720-45-2, 958-720-05-4, and 958-205-45-6] A438 L] L] L]

Are total program costs disclosed if its components are not evident from
the captions used on the face of the Statement of Activities, including in-
formation about why the amount disclosed does not agree with that reflect-
ed on the Statement of Activities or cannot be easily determined from
amounts on the Statement of Activities? [FASB ASC 958-720-45-5 and
958-720-50-1] A439 L] L] L]

Are payments to affiliated organizations that cannot be allocated to func-
tional expense classifications reported as a separate support services line
item on the Statement of Activities captioned “unallocated payments to
affiliated organizations?” [FASB ASC 958-720-45-26] A440 [ [l [l

Other Gains and Losses:

Is the accounting appropriate and are the disclosures adequate for other
gains and loss items included in the Statement of Activities? Consider
the following: Ad41 ] ] ]

e Gains and losses on investments are reported as increases or de-
creases in unrestricted net assets, unless their use is temporarily
or permanently restricted by explicit donor stipulations or by law.
[FASB ASC 958-225-45-8]

e Gains and losses on endowments are reported in permanently
restricted net assets if the governing board has determined rele-
vant law requires they be retained permanently. [FASB ASC 958-
205-45-21]

e Investment income and gains and losses are reported. [Paragraphs
14-15 of FASB ASC 958-225-45; FASB ASC 958-320-50-1;
Paragraphs 1-3 of FASB ASC 958-320-45]

e Donated services, materials, and facilities are reported. [FASB
ASC 958-605-25-16, 958-605-55-28, and 958-605-50-1; Para-
graphs 23-24 of FASB ASC 958-605-55]

e Split-interest agreements are reported. [FASB ASC 958-30]

e Allocation of functional expenses to programs and supporting
services are reported. [FASB ASC 958-720-45 and 958-720-50]
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e Allocation of fund raising expenses, including joint costs of in-
formational materials and activities, between fund raising and
other functional expense categories are reported. [FASB ASC
958-720-45 and 958-720-50]

e  Costs of start-up activities are reported. [FASB ASC 720-15]

e  Grants to other organizations are reported. [FASB ASC 958-205-
45-6]
e  Extraordinary items are reported. [FASB ASC 225-20]

e Unusual or infrequent items, but not both, are reported. [FASB
ASC 225-20]

Business Combinations:

For mergers of NFPs occurring after December 15, 2009, are the ac-
counting and related disclosures adequate? [FASB ASC 958-805] Con-
sider the following: Ad442 ] ] ]

e Do the new entity’s Statement of Activities and Statement of
Cash Flows for its initial reporting period report activity from the
merger date through the end of the reporting period? [FASB ASC
958-805-45-2]

e Has the new entity disclosed information that enables users of its
financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial effect of
the merger of NFPs that resulted in its formation? [Paragraphs 1
and 6 of FASB ASC 958-805-50]

e Has the new entity made all required disclosures for the merger
that resulted in its formation: [FASB ASC 958-805-50-2]

For acquisitions by an NFP after December 15, 2009, the financial
statements of an acquirer (the combined entity) shall report an acquisi-
tion by an NFP as activity of the period in which it occurs. [FASB ASC
958-805-45-3] Consider the following: A443 ] ] ]

e Is goodwill properly recognized and described in the Statement of
Activities? [FASB ASC 958-805-45-4]

e Are inherent contributions properly recognized? [Paragraphs 5-6
of FASB ASC 958-805-45-5]

e Has the NFP acquirer disclosed all necessary information for each
acquisition that occurred during the reporting period (and in the
aggregate for individually immaterial acquisitions occurring dur-
ing the reporting period that are material collectively)? [Para-
graphs 11 and 13 of FASB ASC 958-805-50]

Statement of Cash Flows:

Is the Statement of Cash Flows properly prepared and presented?
Consider the following: A444 L] ] O]

e Cash provided or used by investing, financing, and operating activi-
ties is disclosed. [FASB ASC 958-230 and 230-10-45]

e Amounts received with long-term donor stipulations in cash flows
from financing activities are disclosed. [FASB ASC 958-230-55-3]

e The net effect of cash flows on cash and cash equivalents during
the period in a manner that reconciles beginning and ending cash
and cash equivalents is disclosed; also, do the amounts of cash
and cash equivalents agree with the amounts on the Statement of
Financial Position? [FASB ASC 230-10-45-24]
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e A reconciliation between changes in net assets or net equity and
net cash flow from operating activities is disclosed. [FASB ASC
230-10-45-29]

e Related disclosure of noncash investing and financing activities,
which may include amortization of present value discounts on
contributions received, is reported. [Paragraphs 3-5 of FASB
ASC 230-10-50]

e If the indirect method of reporting net cash flows from operating
activities was used, the amounts of interest and income taxes paid
were disclosed. [FASB ASC 230-10-50-2]

e Cash equivalents are limited to short-term, highly liquid invest-
ments that are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and of an original maturity of three months or fewer, and the or-
ganization’s policy for determining which items are treated as
cash equivalents is disclosed. [FASB ASC glossary term cash
equivalents; Paragraphs 5-6 of FASB ASC 230-10-45; FASB
ASC 230-10-50-1]

e The components of the cash flow statement are shown at “gross”
and not “net” amounts. [Paragraphs 7-9 of FASB ASC 230-10-
45]

e If the organization’s tax-exempt status is in question by the IRS,
the organization considered the potential loss or expense for fi-
nancial reporting and disclosure. [FASB ASC 958-450-25-1]

e If the organization incurs income tax expense, the notes to the
financial statements disclose the amount of the unrelated business
income tax and describe the nature of the activities that generated
the unrelated business income tax. [Paragraph 1¢ of FASB ASC
958-720-50]
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V. EXPLANATION OF “NO” ANSWERS AND OTHER COMMENTS

The following pages are provided for your comments on all “No” answers for which a Matter for Further Considera-
tion form was not generated or to expand upon any of the “Yes” answers. All “No” answers must be thoroughly ex-
plained and reviewed with the engagement owner or partner.
Question Disposition
Number Explanatory Comments of Comments

What is the systemic cause, if any, of the matters identified including your discussion with the engagement partner or
owner and his or her view of the cause of the matters?

" The nature of the disposition of comments may vary, such as
e note “resolved” and the manner of resolution; and
* note “not significant” to indica